COLLECTIVE AGREEMENT

between

THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 82 (COAST MOUNTAINS)

and

CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES LOCAL 2052

July 1, 1994 - June 30, 1997

(Updated April 19, 1999)

TABLE OF CONTENTS

AKTICL	E1 PREAMBLE	. 1
1.01	PURPOSE	
1.02	METHODS	
ARTICLI	E 2 MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	.1
2.01	MANAGEMENT AND DIRECTION	, 1
2.02	HIRING AND DISCIPLINE	. 1
2.03	SUPERVISORY STAFF	
2.04 2.05	EXERCISING OF RIGHTS	
2.05	NON-SEXIST ENVIRONMENT	
2.07	RACISM	
ARTICLI		
3.01	RECOGNITION OF THE CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES	
3.02	No Other Agreements	
3.03	EXCLUSIONS	
3.04	REPRESENTATIVE OF CANADIAN UNION.	
3.05	REPRESENTATION	
ARTICLI		
4.01	Union Membership	,3
ARTICLI	E 5 CHECK-OFF OF UNION DUES	.4
5.01	CHECK-OFF PAYMENTS	.4
5.02	Dues Receipts	
5.03	NOTIFICATION	
ARTICLI	E 6 NEW EMPLOYEES	.4
6.01	ADVISEMENT OF COLLECTIVE AGREEMENT	4
ARTICLI	E 7 CORRESPONDENCE	.4
7.01	PASSING OF CORRESPONDENCE.	4
ARTICLE	E 8 LABOUR MANAGEMENT LIAISON MEETINGS	.5
8.01	REQUEST OF A JOINT MEETING	5
8.02	COMMITTEE MEETINGS	
ARTICLE	E 9 LABOUR MANAGEMENT BARGAINING RELATIONS	5
9.01	Union Bargaining Committee	5
9.02	FUNCTION OF THE BARGAINING COMMITTEE	5
9.03	TIME OFF FOR MEETINGS	5
ARTICLE	E 10 EMPLOYEE DEFINITIONS	5
10.01	PROBATIONARY EMPLOYEE	
10.02	CASUAL EMPLOYEE	5
10.03	LONG-TERM CASUAL EMPLOYEE	
10.04 10.05	REGULAR EMPLOYEE	
10.03	NOON HOUR SUPERVISORS.	

ARTICLI	E 11 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	7
11.01	RECOGNITION OF UNION STEWARDS AND GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE.	7
11.02	NAMES OF STEWARDS AND GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE	
11.03	PERMISSION TO LEAVE WORK	
11.04	GRIEVANCES AND REPLIES IN WRITING	
11.05	DEFINITION OF GRIEVANCE	
11.06	GROUP GRIEVANCE	
11.07	TIME LIMITS	
11.08	Unsafe Working Conditions	
11.09	MANAGEMENT GRIEVANCE	
11.10	SECTION 103 OF THE LABOUR RELATIONS CODE	8
ARTICLE	E 12 ARBITRATION PROCEDURE	9
12.01	COMPOSITION OF BOARD OF ARBITRATION	9
12.02	BOARD PROCEDURE	
12.03	DECISION OF THE BOARD	
12.04	EXPENSES OF THE BOARD	
12.05	AMENDING OF TIME LIMITS	
12.06	WITNESSES	
ARTICLI	E 13 DISCHARGE, SUSPENSION AND DISCIPLINE	.10
13.01	RIGHT TO HAVE A UNION REPRESENTATIVE PRESENT	.10
13.02	WARNINGS	
13.03	BURDEN OF PROOF	.10
13.04	CROSSING OF PICKET LINES DURING STRIKE	
13.05	PERSONNEL FILE	.11
ARTICLE	E 14 SENIORITY	.11
14.01	Principle	.11
14.02	PROBATION FOR NEWLY HIRED EMPLOYEES.	
14.03	SENIORITY LIST	
14.04	NO LOSS OF SENIORITY	.12
14.05	LOSS OF SENIORITY	
14.06	TRANSFERS AND SENIORITY OUTSIDE OF BARGAINING UNIT.	
14.07	CASUAL SERVICE CREDITS.	
14.08	CASUAL AND TEMPORARY EMPLOYEES FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2052 (KITIMAT)	
ARTICLE	PROMOTIONS AND STAFF CHANGES	.14
15.01	JOB POSTINGS	.14
15.02	VACANCIES OCCURRING IN JULY OR AUGUST	
15.03	TEMPORARY VACANCIES	.14
15.04	Trial Period	
15.05	METHOD OF MAKING APPOINTMENTS	
15.06	DEFINITIONS	
ARTICLE	LAYOFFS AND RECALLS	.15
16.01	ROLE OF SENIORITY IN LAYOFFS AND BUMPING	.15
16.02	RECALL PROCEDURE.	.16
16.03	No New Employees	
16.04	BUMPING RESTRICTIONS	16
16.05 N	OTICE OF LAYOFF	.16
16.06	SEVERANCE PAY	
16.07	SEVERANCE PAT SEVERANCE OPTIONS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2052 (KITIMAT)	17
16.07	SEVERANCE PAY - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2052 (KITIMAT)	. 18
10,00		

ARTICL	E 17 HOURS OF WORK	
17.01	REGULAR DAILY HOURS	19
17.02	REGULAR WORK WEEK.	
17.03	ALTERNATE WORK WEEKS/HOURS OF WORK	20
17.04	SHIFT CHANGES	
17.05	SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL ENITILEMENT	
17.06	INCLEMENT WEATHER	
17.07	PAID REST PERIODS	
17.08	WHERE NO WORK IS AVAILABLE	
17.09	ASSIGNMENT OF EXTRA WORK	
17.10	NON INSTRUCTIONAL DAY (SCHOOL TERM EMPLOYEES)	
17.11	SPECIAL SERVICES ASSISTANTS	
17.12	REDISTRIBUTION OF CUSTODIAL WORK	
17.13	OUT OF TOWN Bus TRIPS	
ARTICL	E 18 OVERTIME	24
18.01	OVERTIME ENTITLEMENT	24
18.02	OVERTIME FOR PART-TIME EMPLOYEES	24
18.03	TIME OFF IN LIEU OF OVERTIME	
18.04	COMPENSATION FOR WORK ON PAID HOLIDAYS	24
18.05	CALL OUT PAY GUARANTEE	25
ARTICL	E 19 STATUTORY HOLIDAYS	25
19.01	STATUTORY HOLIDAYS	
19.02	STATUTORY HOLIDAYS - KITIMAT TEN MONTH EMPLOYEES	
19.03	HOLIDAYS ON SCHEDULED DAYS OFF	
19.04		
ARTICL	E 20 VACATIONS	26
20.01 20.01	LENGTH OF VACATIONS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2831 EMPLOYEES (TERRACE)	26
20.01	LENGTH OF VACATIONS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2831 EMPLOYEES (TERRACE)	26 27 28
20.01 20.01	LENGTH OF VACATIONS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2831 EMPLOYEES (TERRACE)	
20.01 20.01 20.01 20.02 20.03	LENGTH OF VACATIONS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2831 EMPLOYEES (TERRACE)	
20.01 20.01 20.01 20.02 20.03 20.04	LENGTH OF VACATIONS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2831 EMPLOYEES (TERRACE) LENGTH OF VACATIONS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2861 EMPLOYEES (TERRACE) LENGTH OF VACATIONS - CUPE LOCAL 2052 (KITIMAT) AS FOLLOWS: PART-TIME EMPLOYEES LEAVING BOARD SERVICE VACATION PERIOD	
20.01 20.01 20.01 20.02 20.03 20.04 20.05	LENGTH OF VACATIONS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2831 EMPLOYEES (TERRACE) LENGTH OF VACATIONS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2861 EMPLOYEES (TERRACE) LENGTH OF VACATIONS - CUPE LOCAL 2052 (KITIMAT) AS FOLLOWS: PART-TIME EMPLOYEES LEAVING BOARD SERVICE VACATION PERIOD APPROVED LEAVE OF ABSENCE DURING VACATION	
20.01 20.01 20.01 20.02 20.03 20.04 20.05 20.06	LENGTH OF VACATIONS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2831 EMPLOYEES (TERRACE)	
20.01 20.01 20.01 20.02 20.03 20.04 20.05	LENGTH OF VACATIONS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2831 EMPLOYEES (TERRACE). LENGTH OF VACATIONS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2861 EMPLOYEES (TERRACE). LENGTH OF VACATIONS - CUPE LOCAL 2052 (KITIMAT) AS FOLLOWS: PART-TIME EMPLOYEES. LEAVING BOARD SERVICE. VACATION PERIOD APPROVED LEAVE OF ABSENCE DURING VACATION. CALL BACK FROM VACATION. SCHOOL CLERICAL STAFF VACATIONS.	
20.01 20.01 20.01 20.02 20.03 20.04 20.05 20.06	LENGTH OF VACATIONS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2831 EMPLOYEES (TERRACE) LENGTH OF VACATIONS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2861 EMPLOYEES (TERRACE) LENGTH OF VACATIONS - CUPE LOCAL 2052 (KITIMAT) AS FOLLOWS: PART-TIME EMPLOYEES LEAVING BOARD SERVICE VACATION PERIOD APPROVED LEAVE OF ABSENCE DURING VACATION CALL BACK FROM VACATION SCHOOL CLERICAL STAFF VACATIONS	
20.01 20.01 20.02 20.03 20.04 20.05 20.06 20.07	LENGTH OF VACATIONS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2831 EMPLOYEES (TERRACE) LENGTH OF VACATIONS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2861 EMPLOYEES (TERRACE) LENGTH OF VACATIONS - CUPE LOCAL 2052 (KITIMAT) AS FOLLOWS: PART-TIME EMPLOYEES LEAVING BOARD SERVICE VACATION PERIOD APPROVED LEAVE OF ABSENCE DURING VACATION CALL BACK FROM VACATION SCHOOL CLERICAL STAFF VACATIONS	
20.01 20.01 20.01 20.02 20.03 20.04 20.05 20.06 20.07	LENGTH OF VACATIONS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2831 EMPLOYEES (TERRACE). LENGTH OF VACATIONS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2861 EMPLOYEES (TERRACE). LENGTH OF VACATIONS - CUPE LOCAL 2052 (KITIMAT) AS FOLLOWS: PART-TIME EMPLOYEES. LEAVING BOARD SERVICE. VACATION PERIOD APPROVED LEAVE OF ABSENCE DURING VACATION. CALL BACK FROM VACATION. SCHOOL CLERICAL STAFF VACATIONS. E 21 SICK LEAVE SICK LEAVE ACCUMULATION OF SICK LEAVE.	
20.01 20.01 20.01 20.02 20.03 20.04 20.05 20.06 20.07 ARTICL	LENGTH OF VACATIONS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2831 EMPLOYEES (TERRACE). LENGTH OF VACATIONS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2861 EMPLOYEES (TERRACE). LENGTH OF VACATIONS - CUPE LOCAL 2052 (KITIMAT) AS FOLLOWS: PART-TIME EMPLOYEES. LEAVING BOARD SERVICE. VACATION PERIOD APPROVED LEAVE OF ABSENCE DURING VACATION. CALL BACK FROM VACATION. SCHOOL CLERICAL STAFF VACATIONS. E 21 SICK LEAVE SICK LEAVE	
20.01 20.01 20.01 20.02 20.03 20.04 20.05 20.06 20.07 ARTICL 21.01 21.02	LENGTH OF VACATIONS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2831 EMPLOYEES (TERRACE). LENGTH OF VACATIONS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2861 EMPLOYEES (TERRACE). LENGTH OF VACATIONS - CUPE LOCAL 2052 (KITIMAT) AS FOLLOWS: PART-TIME EMPLOYEES. LEAVING BOARD SERVICE. VACATION PERIOD. APPROVED LEAVE OF ABSENCE DURING VACATION. CALL BACK FROM VACATION. SCHOOL CLERICAL STAFF VACATIONS. E 21 SICK LEAVE. SICK LEAVE DEFINED. ACCUMULATION OF SICK LEAVE. SICK LEAVE DURING LEAVE OF ABSENCE OR LAYOFF. EXTENSION OF SICK LEAVE.	
20.01 20.01 20.01 20.02 20.03 20.04 20.05 20.06 20.07 ARTICL 21.01 21.02 21.03	LENGTH OF VACATIONS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2831 EMPLOYEES (TERRACE). LENGTH OF VACATIONS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2861 EMPLOYEES (TERRACE). LENGTH OF VACATIONS - CUPE LOCAL 2052 (KITIMAT) AS FOLLOWS: PART-TIME EMPLOYEES. LEAVING BOARD SERVICE. VACATION PERIOD. APPROVED LEAVE OF ABSENCE DURING VACATION. CALL BACK FROM VACATION. SCHOOL CLERICAL STAFF VACATIONS. E 21 SICK LEAVE SICK LEAVE DEFINED. ACCUMULATION OF SICK LEAVE. SICK LEAVE DURING LEAVE OF ABSENCE OR LAYOFF. EXTENSION OF SICK LEAVE. PROOF OF ILLNESS.	
20.01 20.01 20.01 20.02 20.03 20.04 20.05 20.06 20.07 ARTICL 21.01 21.02 21.03 21.04 21.05 21.06	LENGTH OF VACATIONS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2831 EMPLOYEES (TERRACE). LENGTH OF VACATIONS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2861 EMPLOYEES (TERRACE). LENGTH OF VACATIONS - CUPE LOCAL 2052 (KITIMAT) AS FOLLOWS: PART-TIME EMPLOYEES. LEAVING BOARD SERVICE. VACATION PERIOD APPROVED LEAVE OF ABSENCE DURING VACATION. CALL BACK FROM VACATION. SCHOOL CLERICAL STAFF VACATIONS. E 21 SICK LEAVE SICK LEAVE DEFINED. ACCUMULATION OF SICK LEAVE. SICK LEAVE DURING LEAVE OF ABSENCE OR LAYOFF. EXTENSION OF SICK LEAVE. PROOF OF ILLNESS. SICK LEAVE RECORDS.	
20.01 20.01 20.01 20.02 20.03 20.04 20.05 20.06 20.07 ARTICL 21.01 21.02 21.03 21.04 21.05 21.06 21.07	LENGTH OF VACATIONS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2831 EMPLOYEES (TERRACE). LENGTH OF VACATIONS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2861 EMPLOYEES (TERRACE). LENGTH OF VACATIONS - CUPE LOCAL 2052 (KITIMAT) AS FOLLOWS: PART-TIME EMPLOYEES. LEAVING BOARD SERVICE. VACATION PERIOD. APPROVED LEAVE OF ABSENCE DURING VACATION. CALL BACK FROM VACATION. SCHOOL CLERICAL STAFF VACATIONS. E 21 SICK LEAVE SICK LEAVE DEFINED. ACCUMULATION OF SICK LEAVE. SICK LEAVE DURING LEAVE OF ABSENCE OR LAYOFF. EXTENSION OF SICK LEAVE. PROOF OF ILINESS. SICK LEAVE RECORDS. ILINESS IN THE FAMILY.	
20.01 20.01 20.01 20.02 20.03 20.04 20.05 20.06 20.07 ARTICL 21.01 21.02 21.03 21.04 21.05 21.06 21.07 21.08	LENGTH OF VACATIONS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2831 EMPLOYEES (TERRACE). LENGTH OF VACATIONS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2861 EMPLOYEES (TERRACE). LENGTH OF VACATIONS - CUPE LOCAL 2052 (KITIMAT) AS FOLLOWS: PART-TIME EMPLOYEES. LEAVING BOARD SERVICE. VACATION PERIOD APPROVED LEAVE OF ABSENCE DURING VACATION. CALL BACK FROM VACATION. SCHOOL CLERICAL STAFF VACATIONS. E 21 SICK LEAVE. SICK LEAVE DEFINED. ACCUMULATION OF SICK LEAVE. SICK LEAVE DURING LEAVE OF ABSENCE OR LAYOFF. EXTENSION OF SICK LEAVE. PROOF OF ILLNESS. SICK LEAVE RECORDS. ILLNESS IN THE FAMILY. PAYMENT OF UNUSED SICK LEAVE.	
20.01 20.01 20.01 20.02 20.03 20.04 20.05 20.06 20.07 ARTICL 21.01 21.02 21.03 21.04 21.05 21.06 21.07 21.08 21.09	LENGTH OF VACATIONS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2831 EMPLOYEES (TERRACE). LENGTH OF VACATIONS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2861 EMPLOYEES (TERRACE). LENGTH OF VACATIONS - CUPE LOCAL 2052 (KITIMAT) AS FOLLOWS: PART-TIME EMPLOYEES. LEAVING BOARD SERVICE. VACATION PERIOD. APPROVED LEAVE OF ABSENCE DURING VACATION. CALL BACK FROM VACATION. SCHOOL CLERICAL STAFF VACATIONS. E 21 SICK LEAVE. SICK LEAVE DEFINED. ACCUMULATION OF SICK LEAVE. SICK LEAVE DURING LEAVE OF ABSENCE OR LAYOFF. EXTENSION OF SICK LEAVE. PROOF OF ILLNESS. SICK LEAVE RECORDS. ILLNESS IN THE FAMILY. PAYMENT OF UNUSED SICK LEAVE. SICK LEAVE CREDITS - FORMER CUPE 2861 (TERRACE).	
20.01 20.01 20.01 20.02 20.03 20.04 20.05 20.06 20.07 ARTICL 21.01 21.02 21.03 21.04 21.05 21.06 21.07 21.08	LENGTH OF VACATIONS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2831 EMPLOYEES (TERRACE). LENGTH OF VACATIONS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2861 EMPLOYEES (TERRACE). LENGTH OF VACATIONS - CUPE LOCAL 2052 (KITIMAT) AS FOLLOWS: PART-TIME EMPLOYEES. LEAVING BOARD SERVICE. VACATION PERIOD APPROVED LEAVE OF ABSENCE DURING VACATION. CALL BACK FROM VACATION. SCHOOL CLERICAL STAFF VACATIONS. E 21 SICK LEAVE SICK LEAVE DEFINED. ACCUMULATION OF SICK LEAVE. SICK LEAVE DURING LEAVE OF ABSENCE OR LAYOFF. EXTENSION OF SICK LEAVE. PROOF OF ILLNESS. SICK LEAVE RECORDS. ILLNESS IN THE FAMILY. PAYMENT OF UNUSED SICK LEAVE. SICK LEAVE CREDITS - FORMER CUPE 2861 (TERRACE). SICK LEAVE CREDITS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2052 (KITIMAT).	
20.01 20.01 20.01 20.02 20.03 20.04 20.05 20.06 20.07 ARTICL 21.01 21.02 21.03 21.04 21.05 21.06 21.07 21.08 21.09	LENGTH OF VACATIONS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2831 EMPLOYEES (TERRACE). LENGTH OF VACATIONS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2861 EMPLOYEES (TERRACE). LENGTH OF VACATIONS - CUPE LOCAL 2052 (KITIMAT) AS FOLLOWS. PART-TIME EMPLOYEES. LEAVING BOARD SERVICE. VACATION PERIOD APPROVED LEAVE OF ABSENCE DURING VACATION. CALL BACK FROM VACATION. SCHOOL CLERICAL STAFF VACATIONS. E 21 SICK LEAVE. SICK LEAVE DEFINED. ACCUMULATION OF SICK LEAVE. SICK LEAVE DURING LEAVE OF ABSENCE OR LAYOFF. EXTENSION OF SICK LEAVE. PROOF OF ILLNESS. SICK LEAVE RECORDS. ILLNESS IN THE FAMILY. PAYMENT OF UNUSED SICK LEAVE. SICK LEAVE CREDITS - FORMER CUPE 2861 (TERRACE). SICK LEAVE CREDITS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2052 (KITIMAT).	
20.01 20.01 20.01 20.02 20.03 20.04 20.05 20.06 20.07 ARTICL 21.01 21.02 21.03 21.04 21.05 21.06 21.07 21.08 21.09 21.10 ARTICL	LENGTH OF VACATIONS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2831 EMPLOYEES (TERRACE). LENGTH OF VACATIONS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2861 EMPLOYEES (TERRACE). LENGTH OF VACATIONS - CUPE LOCAL 2052 (KITIMAT) AS FOLLOWS: PART-TIME EMPLOYEES. LEAVING BOARD SERVICE. VACATION PERIOD. APPROVED LEAVE OF ABSENCE DURING VACATION. CALL BACK FROM VACATION. SCHOOL CLERICAL STAFF VACATIONS. E 21 SICK LEAVE. SICK LEAVE DEFINED. ACCUMULATION OF SICK LEAVE. SICK LEAVE DURING LEAVE OF ABSENCE OR LAYOFF. EXTENSION OF SICK LEAVE. PROOF OF ILLNESS. SICK LEAVE RECORDS. ILLNESS IN THE FAMILY. PAYMENT OF UNUSED SICK LEAVE. SICK LEAVE CREDITS - FORMER CUPE 2861 (TERRACE). SICK LEAVE CREDITS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2052 (KITIMAT).	
20.01 20.01 20.01 20.02 20.03 20.04 20.05 20.06 20.07 ARTICL 21.01 21.02 21.03 21.04 21.05 21.06 21.07 21.08 21.09 21.10	LENGTH OF VACATIONS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2831 EMPLOYEES (TERRACE). LENGTH OF VACATIONS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2861 EMPLOYEES (TERRACE). LENGTH OF VACATIONS - CUPE LOCAL 2052 (KITIMAT) AS FOLLOWS. PART-TIME EMPLOYEES. LEAVING BOARD SERVICE. VACATION PERIOD APPROVED LEAVE OF ABSENCE DURING VACATION. CALL BACK FROM VACATION. SCHOOL CLERICAL STAFF VACATIONS. E 21 SICK LEAVE. SICK LEAVE DEFINED. ACCUMULATION OF SICK LEAVE. SICK LEAVE DURING LEAVE OF ABSENCE OR LAYOFF. EXTENSION OF SICK LEAVE. PROOF OF ILLNESS. SICK LEAVE RECORDS. ILLNESS IN THE FAMILY. PAYMENT OF UNUSED SICK LEAVE. SICK LEAVE CREDITS - FORMER CUPE 2861 (TERRACE). SICK LEAVE CREDITS - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2052 (KITIMAT).	

22.04	LEAV	VE OF ABSENCE FOR UNION FUNCTIONS	.32
22,05		VE FOR FULL-TIME UNION OFFICIALS	
22.06		EAVEMENT LEAVE	
22.07		PASSIONATE LEAVE - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2052 (KITIMAT)	
22.08		ERNITY/ADOPTION/PARENTAL LEAVE	
22.09	PAID	JURY OR COURT WIINESS DUTY LEAVE	.34
22.10	GENI	ERAL LEAVE,	.34
22.11	LEAV	VE FOR PUBLIC DUTIES	.34
22,12	MED	ICAL CARE LEAVE	.35
22.13	SPEC	IAL LEAVE	.35
ADDICT	E 44	PAYMENT OF WAGES AND ALLOWANCES	25
ARTICL	E 23	PAYMENT OF WAGES AND ALLOWANCES	.35
23.01	PAY 1	Days	.35
23.02	Assi	GNMENTS AND SUBSTITUTES	.35
23.03		ATION PAY PROCEDURE	
23.04	INCR	EMENTS - PROMOTION, DEMOTION	.36
23,05		D CUSTODIAN PREMIUM	
ADDICE	5 4 4	IOD OF A CONTROL AND DECL A CONTROL	26
ARTICL	E 24	JOB CLASSIFICATION AND RECLASSIFICATION	.36
24.01	CLAS	SSIFICATION CHANGES AND NEW POSITIONS	36
ADDITO			
ARTICL	E 25	EMPLOYEE BENEFITS	36
25.01	HEAI	TH PLANS	36
25.02		ION	
25.03		UP LIFE INSURANCE	
25.04		GTERM DISABILITY PLAN	
25,05		INUATION OF BENEFITS.	
25.06		KERS' COMPENSATION PAY SUPPLEMENT	
25.07		OYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM	
25.08	REIM	BURSEMENT FOR VEHICLE DAMAGE OR THEFT	38
25.09	REGI	STEREDRETIREMENT SAVINGS PLAN (RRSP) - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2052 (KITIMAT)	38
ARTICL		VIDEO DISPLAY TERMINALS	
AKTICLI			
26.01	VIDE	O DISPLAY TERMINALS (VDTs)	.39
ARTICL	F 27	SAFETY AND HEALTH	30
AKTICLI			
27.01	CLO	THING	39
27.02		THING • FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2052 (KITIMAT)	
27.03		RY PAY PROVISIONS	
27.04		NSPORTATIONOF ACCIDENT VICTIMS	
27.05		RICT SAFETY COMMITTEE	
27.06		KPLACE VIOLENCE	
27.07		ATIONS OF IMMEDIATE DANGER	
27.08		TH AND SAFETY PROBLEMS	
27.09		AID CERTIFICATE - FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2052 (KITIMAT)	
27.10	INDU	STRIAL FIRST AID CERTIFICATE- FORMER CUPE LOCAL 2052 (KITIMAT)	42
ARTICLI	E 28	TECHNOLOGICAL CHANGE	42
28.01		NITION	
28.02		ANCE NOTICE	
28.03		ME PROTECTION AND TRANSFERS	
28.04	TRAI	NING BENEFITS	43
ARTICLI	E 29	GENERAL CONDITIONS	43
_			
29.01		RSES OF INSTRUCTION	
29.02	HARA	ASSMENT	43

29.03	INTRA-DISTRICT COMMUNICATIONS AND BULLETIN BOARDS	
29.04	COPIES OF AGREEMENT	
29.05	WORK OF THE BARGAINING UNIT	
29.06 29.07	PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENTUSE OF SCHOOL FACILITIES	
29.08	PRE-RETIREMENT SEMINAR	
29.09	MEDICAL PROCEDURES	
29.10	MEDICATION	
29.11	INJECTIONS AND INOCULATIONS	
29.12	Examination of Students	
29.13	INDEMNIFICATION	
29.14	EMPLOYEE ABSENCE	
29.15 29.16	BOARD MEETINGS PACES DAY-CARE FACILITY	
ARTICL		
30.01	PLURAL OR FEMININE TERMS MAY APPLY	
	E 31 TERM OF AGREEMENT	
3i.01	DURATION	
SIGNAT	URE PAGE	48
SCHEDU	JLE "A"	49
JOB CL	ASSIFICATIONS. FORMER LOCAL 2831	49
SCHEDU	'LE''B''	50
JOB CL	ASSIFICATION FORMER LOCAL 2861 (TERRACE)	50
SCHEDU	'LE ''C''	51
FORME	r Local 2052 (Kitimat) HOURLY RATES	51
SCHEDU	'LE ''D''	52
JOB GI	ROUP LISTING OF POSITIONS. FORMER LOCAL 2052 KITIMAT	52
SCHEDU	LE "E"	53
ALLO	CATION OF POSITIONS BY DEPARTMENT	53
SCHEDU	LE"F"	54
	EAD CUSTODIAN	
RE: DI	RTY MONEY	54
LETTER	OF UNDERSTANDING #1	55
LETTER	OF UNDERSTANDING #2	58
LETTER	OF UNDERSTANDING #3	59
LETTER	OF UNDERSTANDING #4	60
LETTER	OF UNDERSTANDING #5	61
LETTER	OF UNDERSTANDING #6	63
r etted	OF UNDERSTANDING #7	6.4

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING#8	65
APPENDIX 'A'	
LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING #9	67
LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING#10	68
LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING#11	71
LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING #12	72
LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING #13	74
LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING#14	75
LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING #15	76
LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING #16	77
ATTACHMENT "A"	78
ATTACHMENT "B"	79
ATTACHMENT "C"	81
ATTACHMENT"D"	84
ATTACHMENT "E"	87
ATTACHMENT "F"	88
ATTACHMENT "G"	89
ATTACHMENT "H"	91
ATTACHMENT "I"	92

AGREEMENT BETWEEN:

THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 82 (COAST MOUNTAINS)

(hereinafter called the "Board")

and

THE CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES

LOCAL 2052

(hereinafter called the "Union")

ARTICLE ■ **PREAMBLE**

1.01 Purpose

It is the purpose of both Parties to this Agreement:

- (a) To seek to maintain and improve harmonious relations between the Board and the Union.
- (b) To recognise the mutual value of joint discussions and negotiations with regard to wages, hours of work and working conditions.
- (c) To encourage efficiency in operations.
- (d) To promote the morale, well being and security of all employees in the bargaining unit of the Union.

1.02 Methods

It **is** now desirable that methods of bargaining and matters pertaining to the working conditions of the employees be drawn **up** in a collective agreement.

ARTICLE 2 MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

2.01 Management and Direction

The management and the operation of and the direction and promotion of the working forces is vested exclusively in the Board, subject to the terms of this Agreement.

2.02 Hiring and Discipline

The Board shall have the right to select its employees and to discipline, transfer, demote or discharge them for proper cause.

2.03 Supervisory Staff

The selection and promotion of supervisory staff shall be entirely a matter for the Board's decision, but in making such selection or promotion, seniority shall be given due consideration.

2.04 Exercising of Rights

The Board shall exercise its rights in a fair and reasonable manner.

2.05 Board Shall Not Discriminate

The Board agrees that there shall be no discrimination exercised or practised with respect to any employee in the administration of this Collective Agreement by reason of age, race, creed, colour, ancestry, national origin, religion, political affiliation or activity, sex, marital or parental status, nor by reason of membership in the Union or authorized activities on behalf of the Union.

2.06 Non-sexist Environment

The Board and the Union agree that they will not condone and will not tolerate any expression of sexism.

2.07 Racism

The Board and the Union agree that they will not condone and will not tolerate any expression of racism in the workplace.

ARTICLE 3 RECOGNITION AND NEGOTIATION

3.01 Recognition of the Canadian Union of Public Employees

The Board recognizes the Canadian Union of Public Employees and its Local 2052, as the sole and exclusive collective bargaining agent for all of its employees as certified by the British Columbia Labour Relations Board.

3.02 No Other Agreements

No employee or group of employees shall be required or permitted to make a written or verbal agreement with the Board or its representatives which may conflict with the terms of this Collective Agreement.

3.03 Exclusions

The following positions are excluded from the terms and conditions of this Collective Agreement:

Executive Secretary to the Secretary Treasurer
Executive Secretary to the Superintendent of Schools
Secretary to the Director of Personnel Services
Accountant
Assistant Secretary Treasurer
Purchasing Agent
Resource Centre Co-ordinator
Theatre Manager
Maintenance Superintendent
Maintenance Supervisor

3.04 Representative of Canadian Union

The Union shall have the right to have assistance of representatives of the Canadian Union of Public Employees when dealing or negotiating with the Board. Such representative(s) may request access to the Board's premises in order to investigate and assist in the settlement of a grievance.

3.05 Representation

The Union shall provide the Board with the names of officers, stewards, committee members and representatives with whom the Board may be required to meet. The Board shall likewise provide the Union with the names of its officers and committee members and representatives with whom the Union may be required to meet.

ARTICLE 4 UNION MEMBERSHIP REQUIREMENTS

4.01 Union Membership

All employees who, at the date of signing of this Agreement are members of the Union, or any employee who hereafter during the life of this Agreement becomes a member, shall as a condition of continued employment maintain membership in good standing with the Union.

New employees commencing employment with the Board shall become members of the Union within fifteen (15) days.

ARTICLE 5 CHECK-OFF OF UNION DUES

5.01 Check-off Payments

As a condition of employment, every employee shall sign a check-off form authorising the Board to deduct from their earnings and pay to the Union any dues, initiation fees or assessments legally levied by the Union. Employees who are not required to join the Union shall authorise the Board to deduct from their earnings and pay to the Union an amount equivalent to Union dues. Dues deductions shall commence upon the date of hire of a new employee. All other employees will authorize deductions and deductions will commence no later than thirty (30) calendar days from the signing date of the Collective Agreement. The Board shall remit the dues deducted pursuant to such assignment to the Treasurer of the Union not later than the fifteenth (15th) of the month following in which deductions were made, with a written statement of names of the employees for whom the deductions were made and the amount of each deduction.

5.02 Dues Receipts

At the same time that Income Tax (T-4) slips are made available, the Board shall type on the amount of Union dues paid by each Union member in the previous year.

5.03 Notification

The Union shall be notified of all appointments, hirings, layoffs, rehirings and terminations of employment with the month-end check-off statement. Notification of hirings shall contain classification and rate of pay and in the case of casual employees, the anticipated termination date.

ARTICLE 6 NEW EMPLOYEES

6.01 Advisement of Collective Agreement

The Board agrees to advise new employees that a Union Agreement is in effect, to provide them with a copy of the Collective Agreement and to advise them of the name of their Union Steward or Representative. Every employee shall be notified of the name of the employee's immediate designated supervisor(s).

ARTICLE 7 CORRESPONDENCE

7.01 Passing of Correspondence

All correspondence between the parties, arising out of this Agreement or incidental thereto, shall pass to and from the Secretary-Treasurer of the Board and the President of the Union with copies, for information, as may be requested by the Union.

ARTICLE 8 LABOUR MANAGEMENT LIAISON MEETINGS

8.01 Request of a Joint Meeting

The Board or the Union may request a joint meeting to discuss matters of mutual concern regarding the application, interpretation or implementation of the Collective Agreement. The Committee shall not supersede the activities of other committees and does not have the power to bind either the Union or its members or the Board to any decision.

8.02 Committee Meetings

Except as elsewhere provided, when the Board requires the attendance of a Union member at a committee meeting held during the member's regular working hours, the Union member may attend without loss of remuneration.

ARTICLE 9 LABOUR MANAGEMENT BARGAINING RELATIONS

9.01 Union Bargaining Committee

A Union Bargaining Committee shall be elected or appointed of not more than six (6) members of the Union. The Union shall advise the Board of the Union nominees to the Committee.

9.02 Function of the Bargaining Committee

The Union Bargaining Committee shall be responsible for negotiating with the Board and/or their agents to establish wages, hours of work and other working conditions.

9.03 Time off For Meetings

Up to six (6) representatives of the Union on the Bargaining Committee, who are in the employ of the Board, shall have the right to attend meetings held within working hours without loss of remuneration. The Union shall reimbursethe Board for wages and benefits for the fourth, fifth and sixth representatives.

ARTICLE 10 EMPLOYEE DEFINITIONS

10.01 Probationary Employee

Probationary employee shall be defined as a person who is serving a probationary period of sixty-five (65) working days, for a regular appointment with the Board.

10.02 Casual Employee

Casual employee shall be defined as a person who is employed on a day to day basis and who has an anticipated termination date. A casual employee shall usually be hired as a

temporary replacement necessitated by illness, injury, leave of absence, vacation or temporary filling of a vacancy. In all cases, duration of employment shall not exceed sixty (60) continuous working days, unless the period is extended by mutual agreement. Such extension shall not be unreasonably withheld. Casual employees shall only be entitled to the provisions of this Agreement relating to wage rates, hours of work, rest periods and those articles of this agreement specifically referring to casuals, and those benefits to which they are entitled by virtue of Federal or Provincial Government statutes.

10.03 Long-Term Casual Employee

Long-term casual employee shall be defined as an employee who **is** employed to fill a temporarily existing position. A long-term casual employee shall be employed for a fixed or indefinite period, of three (3) months or more, as a replacement necessitated by illness, injury, leave of absence and, in the case **of** a fixed period assignment, that period may be extended by mutual written agreement. Long-term casual employees shall be entitled to all provisions of the agreement applicable to regular employees except Article 16 and Article 22.

10.04 Regular Employee

Regular employee shall be defined as **a** person who has satisfactorily completed **s**ixty-five (65) working days service with the Board and who is employed on a regular full-time or part-time basis and includes those employees assigned to normal ten (10) month positions. Regular part-time employees, working fifteen **(15)** hours or more a week, shall receive benefit entitlement equal to full-time employees except as otherwise specified.

10.05 Regular Employee - Former CUPE Local 2052 (Kitimat)

Clause 9.2(f) of former CUPE Local 2052 (Kitimat) shall continue to apply to the employees of former CUPE Local 2052 of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat) who are employed on February 28, 1999 (See Article C). It reads as follows:

An employee originally classified as Regular Full-time who, through an action **of** the Board **is** reduced to Regular Part-time, shall continue to be recognized as Regular Full-time.

10.06 Noon Hour Supervisors

Noon Hour Supervisors are those employees, who, having completed the probationary period, work **a** minimum of one **(1)** hour per day as a noon hour supervisor.

ARTICLE 11 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

11.01 Recognition of Union Stewards and Grievance Committee

In order to provide an orderly and speedy procedure for the settling of grievances, a Steward may assist an employee whom the Steward represents in preparing and presenting a grievance, in accordance with the grievance procedure.

11.02 Names of Stewards and Grievance Committee

The Union shall notify the Board in writing of the name of each Steward and the name of the Chief Steward. The Union will notify the Board of the members on the Grievance Committee.

11.03 Permission to Leave Work

Union representatives shall be permitted time off without loss of pay to handle grievances, provided they have first sought and obtained permission from the Secretary-Treasurer or designate to absent themselves from their regular duties for that purpose, which permission shall not be unreasonably withheld.

11.04 Grievances and Replies in Writing

Grievances and replies to grievances shall be in writing at all stages.

11.05 Definition of Grievance

A grievance is defined as any difference that arises between the parties out of the interpretation, application, operation or any alleged violation of this Agreement, including any difference arising from the suspension or dismissal of any employee and including any question or difference as to whether the matter is arbitrable.

Such question or difference shall be finally and conclusively settled without stoppage of work in the following manner:

Informal Stage:

The employee shall first seek to settle the grievance through discussion with the employee's supervisor. A representative of the Union may be present at the option of the employee. If the grievance is not resolved the matter shall proceed to Step 1 of the grievance procedure.

<u>Step 1</u> - The difference or grievance shall be reduced to writing and shall be presented by the Union to the employee's supervisor. At each step of the grievance procedure the grievor shall have the right to be present.

<u>Step 2</u> - Failing satisfactory settlement within five (5) working days of receipt of such grievance, the Union shall submit the grievance to the Secretary Treasurer of the Board.

<u>Step 3</u> - Failing satisfactory settlement within five (5) working days of submitting the grievance to the Secretary Treasurer of the Board, such grievance shall be referred to a grievance committee comprised of two (2) members each from the Board and the Union. The Committee shall, if it so desires, have its advisors in attendance. Failing satisfactory settlement within ten (10) working days of the grievance being referred to the Grievance Committee, the matter may be referred for resolution to Arbitration.

1 L06 Group Grievance

Two (2) or more employees having the same grievance may process one group grievance through the grievance procedure.

11.07 Time Limits

If a dispute is not submitted within thirty (30) calendar days after the occurrence of the act or decision giving rise to the dispute, then the dispute shall be deemed to be abandoned, and all rights of recourse to the grievance procedure shall be at an end. If a grievance has not advanced to the next stage under Step 2 or 3 within fourteen (14) days after completion of the preceding stage, then the grievance shall be deemed to be abandoned, and all rights of recourse to the grievance procedure shall be at an end.

11.08 Unsafe Working Conditions

A claim by an employee or a group of employees that they are working under unsafe working conditions shall be investigated as quickly as possible by the Board. No employee shall be required to work on an assignment which is unsafe. Such employee(s) shall not be subject to disciplinary action and temporary alternative work at no **loss** in pay shall be provided until the matter is resolved.

11.09 Management Grievance

The Board shall have equal access to all sections of the grievance procedure.

11.10 Section 103 of the Labour Relations Code

Where **a** difference arises between the parties relating to the dismissal, discipline or suspension of an employee, or to the interpretation, application, operation or alleged violation of this Agreement including any question as to whether a matter is arbitrable, during the term of the Collective Agreement, Vince Ready or a substitute agreed to by the parties, shall at the request **of** either party:

(a) investigate the difference;

- (b) define the issue in the difference; and
- (c) make written recommendations to resolve the difference within five (5) days of the date of receipt of the request; and, for those five (5) days from that date, time does not run in respect of the grievance procedure.

The Minister of Finance on the Minister's requisition, shall pay out of the consolidated revenue fund one-third (1/3) of the cost incurred by the parties for payment of reasonable remuneration, travelling and out-of-pocket expenses of the person named or the named-person's substitute.

Where the Board and the Union mutually agree to the use of Section 103, the recommendations of the investigator shall be binding on both parties.

ARTICLE 12 ARBITRATION PROCEDURE

12.01 Composition of Board of Arbitration

When either party requests that a grievance be submitted to arbitration, the request shall be made in writing, addressed to the other party of the Agreement. Within five (5) days thereafter, each party shall name an arbitrator to an arbitration board and notify the other party of the name and address of its appointee.

If the recipient of the notice fails to appoint an arbitrator, or if the two (2) appointees fail to agree upon a chair within five (5) days, the appointment shall be made by the Minister of Labour upon request of either party. By mutual agreement of the Union and the Board, a single arbitrator may be appointed by the parties.

12.02 Board Procedure

The arbitration board may determine its own procedure, but shall give full opportunity to all parties to present evidence and make representations to it. The arbitration board shall endeavour to commence its proceedings within forty-eight (48) hours after the chair is appointed. It shall hear and determine the difference or allegation and render a decision within ten (10) days from the time the chair is appointed. The decision of the majority shall be the decision of the board of arbitration.

12.03 Decision of the Board

The decision of the Board of Arbitration shall be final and binding on all parties, but in no event shall the Board of Arbitration have the power to alter, modify or amend this Agreement in any respect. Should the parties disagree as to the meaning of the decision, either party may apply to the chair of the Board to reconvene the Board of Arbitration to clarify the decision, which it shall do within three (3) days.

12.04 Expenses of the Board

Each party shall pay:

- (a) the fees and expenses of the arbitrator it appoints;
- (b) one-half ($\frac{1}{2}$) the fees and expenses of the chair.

12.05 Amending of Time Limits

The time limit fixed in both the grievance and arbitration procedures may be extended by mutual consent of the parties to this Agreement.

12.06 Witnesses

At any stage of the grievance or arbitration procedures, the parties may have the assistance of the employee(s) concerned as witnesses, and any other witnesses, and all reasonable arrangements will be made to permit the conferring parties or arbitrator(s) to have access to any part of the Board's premises to view the working conditions which may be relevant to the settlement of the grievance.

<u>.E 13 | ARGE SUSPENSION | DISCIPLINE</u>

13.01 Right to have a Union Representative Present

An employee shall have the right to have his Steward **present** at any discussion with supervisory personnel which the employee believes might be the basis of disciplinary action. Where a supervisor intends to interview an employee for disciplinary purposes, the supervisor shall so notify the employee in advance in order that the employee may contact his Steward. The Steward or other Union representative shall be present at the interview.

13.02 Warnings

Whenever the Board or its authorized agent deems it necessary to censure an employee, in writing, in a manner indicating that dismissal or discipline may follow any further infraction or may follow if such employee fails to bring the employee's work up to a required standard by a given date, the Board shall, within five (5) days, send a copy to the President of the Union.

13.03 Burden of Proof

In cases of discharge and/or discipline, the burden of proof of just cause shall rest with the Board.

13.04 Crossing of Picket Lines During Strike

An employee covered by this Agreement may refuse to cross a legal picket line arising out of labour disputes. Failure to cross such a picket line by a member of this Union shall not be considered a violation of this Agreement nor shall it be grounds for disciplinary action, other than loss of pay for time not worked.

13.05 Personnel File

An employee upon providing reasonable notice to the Secretary Treasurer of the Board or designate, shall be granted access to the employee's personnel file. Employees shall be permitted to insert written, signed and dated comments regarding information contained in their file. Due to the confidential nature of these files, access for persons other than the employee will be as authorized by the Secretary Treasurer or designate.

The Board agrees that only material relevant to the employment of the employee shall be maintained in personnel files. An employee may request removal of material on the basis that it is not factually correct, relevant, or, in the case of material related to performance or conduct, timely. In the event that the Board does not agree to removal of specified material, the employee may file a grievance pursuant to Article 11 of this Agreement.

There shall be only one **(Ip)** Prsonnel file for each employee, which shall be maintained at the School Board office in the custody of the Secretary Treasurer.

ARTICLE 14 SENIORITY

14.01 Principle

Seniority is the length of service that a regular employee has with the District. The application of seniority shall be on a bargaining-unit-wide basis.

14.02 Probation for Newly Hired Employees

A newly hired employee shall be on probation for a period of sixty-five (65) working days from the date of hiring, during which time the employee shall be considered temporary with no seniority rights.

Upon successful completion of the probationary period, the employee's regular seniority shall be backdated to the date of hire in the regular position.

14.03 Seniority List

The Board shall maintain a seniority list showing the date upon which each employee's service commenced. An up-to-date seniority list shall be sent to the Secretary of the Union on November 1st of each year.

14.04 No Loss of Seniority

An employee shall not lose seniority rights if absent from work because of sickness, accident, layoff except as provided in Article 14.05, or leave of absence approved by the Board.

14.05 Loss of Seniority

An employee shall only lose seniority in the event the employee:

- (a) is discharged for just cause and is not reinstated.
- (b) resigns.
- (c) is absent from work in excess of three (3) working days without sufficient cause or without notifying the employee's Supervisor, unless such notice was not reasonably possible.
- (d) fails to return to work within seven (7) calendar days following a layoff and after being notified by registered mail to do so, unless through sickness or other just cause. It shall be the responsibility of the employee to keep the Board informed of the employee's current address.
- (e) is laid off for a period longer than twelve (12) months.
- is laid off for a period longer than thirty-six (36) months. (Former CUPE Local 2052, Kitimat)

Clause 14.05 (f) is Clause 10.5 (d) of the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE Local 2052 of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat). It shall continue to apply until January 1, 2003 to employees of former CUPE Local 2052 of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat) who are employed or are presently on layoff status on February 28, 1999. Effective January 2, 2003 this Clause will no longer apply.

14.06 Transfers and Seniority Outside of Bargaining Unit

No employee shall be transferred to a position outside the bargaining unit without the employee's consent. If an employee is transferred to a position outside of the bargaining unit, the employee shall retain seniority up to the date of leaving the Unit, but will not accumulate any further seniority.

14.07 Casual Service Credits

Casual employees and Long-Term Casual employees shall accumulate service credits on a shift-worked basis. After a casual or long-term casual accumulates ninety (90) shifts service credit the employee shall use service credits when applying for a regular or long-term casual position with the Board, within the first ten (10) days of the posting.

(a) The Board shall consider applicants in the following order:

- 1 regular employees
- 2 casual and long-term casuals with service credits
- 3- outside applicants and casuals without service credits
- (b) The Board when considering casual and long-term casual employees with service credits for a posted position shall apply Article 15.05.
- (c) When a casual or long-term casual employee successfully completes the probationary period in a regular position then the service credits as a casual or long-term casual shall be converted to a retroactive date and regular seniority shall then be from that calculated date.
- (d) A casual or long-term casual employee who does not have service credits shall be considered as an outside applicant pursuant to Article 15.05.

14.08 Casual and Temporary Employees -- Former CUPE Local 2052 (Kitimat)

Casual and temporary employees who are on the casual or temporary list on February 28, 1999 and have not accumulated ninety (90) shifts of service credits in accordance with Clause 14.07 of the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE, Local 2831 of former School District No. 88 (Terrace), shall have Clause 9.7 of the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE, Local 2052 of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat) continue to apply to them (with the exception of the reference in this clause to 1 13 which shall be 15.05) until they acquire ninety (90) shifts of service credits. The parties shall confirm this list of casual and temporary employees in a signed of document which will become Attachment "B" of this Memorandum of Agreement.

Clause 9.7 of former CUPE Local 2052 reads as follows:

Casual Seniority

Casual and temporary employees will accumulate "casual" seniority on a day-worked basis. Such seniority shall be used only in the following circumstances:

- (a) when competing for a posted vacancy against outside applicants;
- (b) when competing against other casual employees for a posted vacancy.

In either case, Article 11.3 applies, which is as follows:

When a casual or temporary employee successfully completes the probationary period in a regular position, the days worked shall be converted to time and regular seniority shall be effective to that date.

ARTICLE 15 PROMOTIONS AND STAFF CHANGES

15.01 Job Postings

When a vacancy occurs in any classification covered by this Agreement, or in the event of a new position being created, notice thereof shall be posted for ten (10) working days in each work site and a copy shall be mailed to the Secretary of the Union.

In addition to the above, a copy of such posting will be mailed to employees on layoff. It is the responsibility of the employees on layoff to ensure that the Board has their current addresses.

Such postings and notice shall contain the following information: nature and location of the position, required ability, hours of work and wage rate or salary range, and closing date for accepting applications.

Applications must be made in writing. The Union and the internal applicants shall be advised in writing of the names of the successful applicants within seven (7) days following their appointments.

15.02 Vacancies Occurring in July or August

Vacancies occurring in July or August will not be permanently assigned until after school commences in September so that **all** employees may be aware of the vacancies and make application.

15.03 Temporary Vacancies

This Article shall not apply to temporary replacements necessitated by illness, injury, leave of absence, vacation or temporary filling of vacancies where the anticipated duration of the leave will not be greater than three (3) months. An employee who has been filling a temporary vacancy shall not be confirmed as permanently assigned to that position until the job has been posted and the successful applicant selected in accordance with this Article.

15.04 Trial Period

If the successful applicant is **a** regular employee, the employee shall be placed on trial for a period of up to thirty (30) working days. This time frame may be extended by mutual agreement of the parties. Conditional on satisfactory service, such trial promotion shall become permanent after the period of thirty (30) working days. **In** the event the successful applicant proves unsatisfactory in the position or does not wish to continue in the position, the successful applicant shall be returned to the employee's former position at the prevailing rate without **loss** of seniority, and any other employees promoted or transferred because **of** the rearrangement of position shall also **be** transferred to their former position.

15.05 Method of Making Appointments

The Board agrees that seniority shall govern in all cases *of* promotions, transfers and demotions when the qualifications and ability of the applicants concerned are equal. The Board shall determine qualifications and ability in a fair and equitable manner.

15.06 Definitions

For the purposes of this Article the following definitions apply:

- (a) Appointment means an action by the Board to hire a new Employee or to confirm a successful applicant to a position.
- (b) Promotion means an action by the Board to move an employee to a position in a higher job group than the position the employee presently holds.
- (c) Demotion means an action by the Board to move an employee to a position in a lower job group than the position the employee presently holds.
- (d) Transfer means an action by the Board to move an employee to a position in the same job group as the position the employee presently holds.
- (e) Suspension The temporary removal of an employee, with or without pay, from his position subject to the grievance procedure.
- (f) Dismissal means an action by the Board to discharge an employee for just cause, subject to the grievance procedure, and the Board is not required to give notice.
- (g) Resignation means voluntary action by an employee to terminate his employment status with the Board. An employee who wishes to resign shall, whenever possible, give one (In) onth's notice of such resignation.
- (h) Retirement Mandatory withdrawal from employment by an employee on their 65th birthday or at the end of the school year in which they become 65. Employment may however, be continued on a month to month basis by agreement between the Board and the Union.

ARTICLE 16 LAYOFFS AND RECALLS

16.01 Role of Seniority in Layoffs and Bumping

A layoff shall be defined as a reduction in the workforce or a reduction in the regular hours of work of an employee. When an employee's hours of work have been reduced, the employee has the option of retaining the position with the reduced hours.

In the event of a layoff, employees shall be laid off in the reverse order of their bargainingunit-wide seniority, provided that the remaining staff possess the qualifications required in their respective positions.

Except as provided elsewhere in this Agreement, a regular employee whose hours of work have been reduced or who has been laid off may bump a less senior employee if

qualified to perform the work of the less senior employee. The employee shall notify the employee's supervisor, within three (3) working days of being notified in writing that the employee is being laid off or the employee's hours of work are being reduced, of the employee's intent to bump.

16.02 Recall Procedure

Employees shall be recalled in the order of their seniority, provided they are qualified to do the regular work available.

16.03 No New Employees

No new employees shall be hired until those laid off have been given an opportunity of recall.

18.04-Bumping Restrictions

- (a) A classified Special Services Assistant, who is a regular employee and is assigned to one specific student, may be designated for a school year as an employee who cannot be bumped by another employee during that year. The Board and the Union will, by mutual agreement, make such designation(s) as they deem appropriate and, once made, shall be attached as an addendum to this Collective Agreement and shall be valid for that school year. Such mutual agreement shall not be unreasonably withheld. Article 16.04(c) (ii) shall not apply to such a designated employee.
- (b) An employee whose hours of work are determined by student enrolment, may not bump another employee by reason of reduced hours caused solely as a result of declining student enrolment, as determined at or near September 30.
- (c) The right to bump an employee with less seniority does not include the right to bump up. However, bumping up in hours will be allowed where:
 - (i) an employee has previously worked in a position with more hours, and
 - (ii) an employee has not had an opportunity to bid on the position with more hours. Opportunity does not include verbal notice of intent to reduce an employee's hours of work.
- (d) The right to bump an employee with less seniority includes the right to bump up to a higher paid classification and the right to bump into a position with greater hours of work. (Former CUPE Local 2052, (Kitimat)

Clause 16.04(d) is from Clause 12.4(c) of the collective agreement, covering employees of former CUPE Local 2052 of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat). It shall continue to apply to the employees of former CUPE Local 2052 of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat) who are employed on February 28, 1999 (See Article C).

16.05 Notice of Layoff

The Board agrees to notify regular employees and the Union of layoffs in accordance with the following periods of notice:

- (a) Two (2) weeks notice where the employee has completed a period of employment of at least six (6) consecutive months, and
- (b) After the completion of a period of employment of three (3) consecutive years, one (1) additional week's notice, and for each subsequent completed year of employment, an additional week's notice up to a maximum of eight (8) weeks' notice.
- (c) If an employee has not had the opportunity to work the days as provided in this Article, the employee shall be paid for the days for which work was not available.
- (d) The Board is not required to issue to employees who work only for the school year, a notice of layoff for the periods when school is not in session.

16.06 Severance Pay

To satisfy the compensation requirements of the *Public Sector Restraint Act*, exemption clause, severance pay shall be provided to employees on the following basis:

Upon completion of	Severance Pay
Year one	0.8%
Year two	0.8%
Year three	1.6%
Year four	1.6%
Year five	1.6%
Year six and thereafter	3.2%

The above amounts of severance pay are accumulative to a maximum of three (3) months' pay.

Where notice has been given in accordance with Article 16.05, an employee may select severance pay on the date of layoff. Where severance pay has been selected by an employee, all seniority and recall rights are waived. Should the *Public Sector Restraint Act and Regulations* not be effected, there shall be no severance pay rights and this Article shall be void.

16.07 Severance Options - Former CUPE Local 2052 (Kitimat)

An employee affected by a permanent layoff shall have the following options:

(a) To accept recall rights in accordance with this Agreement;

(b) To elect to receive severance pay within three (3) calendar years of the stated day of layoff and be considered as self-terminated with no rights under this Agreement as of the day of acceptance of severance pay.

A recall of less than two (2) months shall have no effect upon this Article.

Clause 16.07 is Clause 12.9 from the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE Local 2052 of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat). Clause 16.07 shall continue to apply until January 1, 2003 to employees of former CUPE Local 2052 of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat) who are employed or are presently on layoff status on February 28, 1999 (See Attachment H). Effective January 2, 2003 this Clause shall no longer apply.

It is understood that an employee cannot receive both the severance pay under this clause as well as the superior sick leave payout of Clause 21.08 of the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE, Local 2831 of former School District No. 88 (Terrace). Should an employee receive severance pay under this clause, Clause 16.5 (e) of the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE, Local 2052 of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat) shall instead apply to this employee.

Clause 16.5(e) reads as follows:

Employees terminating service with the Board after ten (10) years, other than due to dismissal for cause, shall receive a cash payment equivalent to ten percent (10%) of their unused sick days to a maximum of twenty-five (25) working days pay. In the event of death, payment shall be made to the employee's estate.

16.08 Severance Pay - Former CUPE Local 2052 (Kitimat)

An employee electing to receive severance pay shall receive:

- (a) with less than six (6) months' service 2% of annual earnings;
- (b) with between six (6) months and one year's service 4% of annual earnings;
- (c) with greater than one (1) year's service 5% of annual earnings pro-rated for each year's service.

In this clause "annual earnings" means the employee's regular hourly rate at the time of termination times the employee's regularly scheduled annual hours at the time of termination.

Clause 16.08 is Clause 12.10 from the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE Local 2052 of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat). Clause 16.08 shall continue to apply until January 1, 2003 to employees of former CUPE Local 2052 of

former School District No. 80 (Kitimat) who are employed or are presently on layoff status on February 28, 1999. Effective January 2, 2003 this Clause shall no longer apply.

It is understood that an employee cannot receive both the severance pay under this clause as well as the superior sick leave payout of Clause 21.08 of the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE, Local 2831 of former School District No. 88 (Terrace). Should an employee receive severance pay under this clause, Clause 16.5 (e) of the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE, Local 2052 of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat) shall instead apply to this employee.

Clause 16.5(e) reads as follows:

Employees terminating service with the Board after ten (10) years other than due to dismissal for cause, shall receive a cash payment equivalent to ten percent (10%) of their unused sick days to a maximum of twenty-five (25) working days pay. In the event of death, payment shall be made to the employee's estate.

ARTICLE 17 HOURS OF WORK

17.01 Regular Daily Hours

Clerical/ Special Education

The regular workday shall consist of a scheduled period of seven (7) hours of work between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., plus a one (I) hour unpaid break for a meal. By mutual agreement between an employee and the employee's supervisor, a meal break may be less than one (1) hour. The Board may require the Central Substitute Call-Out Secretary to commence work at 6:30 a.m.

<u>Custodial</u>

The regular workday for custodial employees shall be eight (8) consecutive hours per day inclusive of a one-half ($\frac{1}{2}$) hour break for a meal to be taken on the job. This is not intended to detract from the current practice of employing custodians for less than eight (8) hours

Maintenance

The regular workday (day shift) shall consist of a scheduled period of eight (8) consecutive hours of work, plus a one-half ($\frac{1}{2}$) hour unpaid break for a meal between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. On other shifts the regular workday shall be eight (8) consecutive hours inclusive of a one-half ($\frac{1}{2}$) hour break for a meal to be taken on the job.

This regular maintenance workday may be varied by mutual agreement in writing between the Board and the Union.

Transportation

Transportation employees shall be paid in accordance with their scheduled hours of work. The Board shall schedule warm up, inspection and cleanup time as required.

17.02 Regular Work Week

The regular workweek shall consist of five (5) such days, Monday to Friday inclusive. The regular workweek may be varied by mutual agreement between the Board and the Union.

17.03 Alternate Work Weeks/Hours of Work

Resource Centre Days of Work

An employee working at the Resource Centre may be scheduled to work five (5) consecutive regular days of work between Monday and Saturday.

Noon Hour Supervisors

Noon Hour Supervisors are those employees, who, having completed the probationary period, work a minimum of one (In) our per day as a noon hour supervisor.

Correspondence School

An employee working at the Correspondence School may be scheduled to work five (5) consecutive regular days of work between Monday and Saturday.

The regular workday shall consist of a scheduled period of seven (7) hours of work between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 9:00 p.m. plus a one (In) our unpaid break for a meal. By mutual agreement between an employee and the employee's supervisor a meal break may be less than one (In) our. An employee shall not be required to work a split shift.

School Meal Co-ordinator

School Meal Co-ordinator(s) shall be paid at Category No. 1 and shall be for one for one per day. The additional hours currently worked (1%-2 hours per month) are agreeable to both Parties. Any further additional hours per month shall be as agreed between the Parties.

Theatre Employees

This clause shall apply only to the geographical area of the former School District No. 80 (Kitimat).

Technical Director

- (a) The regular workweek will be thirty-five (35) hours Monday to Sunday. The hours will be set over the seven (7) day period and may include split shifts. This is a ten (10) month position:
- (b) The employee shall be guaranteed thirty-five (35) hours pay per week at straight time rates regardless of whether the employee is scheduled to work thirty-five (35) hours in that week.
- (c) The employee will be notified of his Monday to Sunday schedule by the end of the shift on the Friday of the preceding week. Any variation to the schedule will be discussed between the employee and the Theatre Co-ordinator.
- (d) It is the intention of the parties that the employee will be provided with forty-eight (48) consecutive hours off, in any workweek subject to the educational and operational needs of the program/theatre.
- (e) Overtime shall be on a voluntary basis only, except in cases of emergency.
- (f) Overtime shall be paid at time and one-half (1%) for all hours worked over thirty-five (35) hours in any workweek.
- (g) Overtime shall be paid at double time (2 times) for all hours worked over forty-two (42) in any workweek.

17.04 Shift Changes

When it is necessary to change an employee's shift, twenty-four (24) hours prior notice shall be provided. When shifts are being changed there must be a minimum rest period of nine (9) hours between shifts. When an employee does not receive the minimum rest period he shall be paid at overtime rates of pay for all hours worked on the subsequent shift.

17.05 Shift Differential Entitlement

Day Shift - 7:00 a.m. to 3:59 p.m.

Afternoon Shift - 4:00 p.m. to 10:59 p.m.

Night Shift - 11:00 p.m. to 6:59 a.m.

Any employee working the majority of that employee's regular scheduled hours in a day within the shift shall be paid the appropriate shift differential for all regular hours worked that day.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL

Afternoon Shift - \$0.70 per hour for each hour on the shift;

Night Shift - \$0.85 per hour for each hour on the shift;

17.06 Inclement Weather

When the schools are closed due to inclement weather, power failure or hazardous road conditions, the principal shall decide if the employees should report to work. An employee who has been advised not to report or who is sent home, as a result of hazardous road conditions, inclement weather or power failure, shall not suffer loss of earnings for the day(s) which work was not possible.

17.07 Paid Rest Periods

- (a) All employees shall be permitted a fifteen (15) minute rest period, both in the first half and in the second half of a shift, to be taken on the premises at a designated time.
- (b) All Teaching Assistants entitled to rest breaks and to meal breaks shall be entitled to such breaks free from student supervision.
- (c) Rest Breaks Former CUPE Local 2052 (Kitimat)

A full time employee shall be entitled to a paid fifteen (15) minute rest break in each half of his/her shift. A part-time employee shall be entitled to a rest break within each three (3) hours of work.

Clause 17.07(c) is Clause 13.1 of the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE Local 2052 of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat). It shall apply to employees who are employed in the geographical area of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat).

17.08 Where No Work is Available

An employee reporting for work in any day and being sent home before completing four (4) hours work, shall be paid for four (4) hours at the employee's regular rate of pay. In the event an employee reports for work but is sent home before commencing work, the employee shall be paid for two (2) hours at the employee's regular rate, unless the employee was advised by the Board not to report to work. When Article 17.06 applies, this Article shall not apply.

17.09 Assignment of Extra Work

Part-time employees shall be given an opportunity to perform extra hours of work, including that of temporary replacements, to reach a regular workday or week before hiring new employees. Such extra work will be first offered to part-time employees within the same Board building location and same classification and then to others within that geographical region where feasible. The Union will provide a list of part-time employees who may wish to work extra hours.

17.10 Non Instructional Day (School Term Employees)

The Principal may require clerical staff and assistants to work on a non-instructional day.

17.11 Special Services Assistants

When an assigned student is temporarily absent, the affected Assistant shall be provided alternate work for the days of such absence.

17.12 Redistribution of Custodial Work

The Board agrees that where it implements a reduction or an increase in hours of work in a Board building and where feasible, it shall redistribute the work as necessary so as to reduce or increase the employee's hours within the building so as to recognize bargaining-unit-wide seniority.

17.13 Out of Town Bus Trips

(a) Out of town bus trips shall be done on a volunteer basis and paid at the following round trip rates: (In addition to these rates, the appropriate employee vacation rate will be applied.)

Kitimat	175.00 from Terrace
Terrace	175.00 from Kitimat
Prince Rupert	275.00
Smithers	325.00
Houston	350.00
Hazelton	275.00
Aiyansh	275.00
Prince George	450.00

Any other destinations will be paid at the rate set between the Board and the Union.

- (b) Out of town trips shall be offered firstly to regular bus drivers (the Board shall attempt to distribute trips evenly amongst the staff), secondly to other CUPE employees who are qualified to drive the buses and, thirdly, to other qualified School District employees. It is understood that the offering of out of town bus trips shall be limited to the employees working in the trips originating geographical area of Hazelton/Kitwanga, Stewart, Terrace or Kitimat.
- (c) The Board agrees that it will not require teachers to drive school buses. However, the Board and the Union agree that teachers may voluntarily drive those buses known as "sports buses" to transport students for out-of-town travel.

ARTICLE 18 OVERTIME

18.01 Overtime Entitlement

All overtime work, as authorized by the Secretary-Treasurer, shall be paid as follows:

- (a) All time worked over the regular work day shall be paid for at time and one-half (1½) the regular rate for the first three (3) hours of overtime worked in any one day, and double (2) the regular rate thereafter until the commencement of the employee's next scheduled shift.
- (b) Overtime work on Saturday or the first day of rest shall be paid at the rate of time and one-half (1%) the employee's regular rate for the first three (3) hours worked and two (2) times the regular rate thereafter.
- Overtime work on Sunday or the second day of rest shall be paid at the rate of two (2) times the regular rate of the employee.
- (d) Overtime is on a voluntary basis. However, when operational needs dictate, if all qualified regular employees refuse the overtime assignment then the most junior regular qualified employee must work the overtime.
- (e) A regular employee will be called for overtime ahead of overtime for a casual employee.

18.02 Overtime for Part-time Employees

A part-time employee working less than the regular working hours per day shall not qualify for overtime rates until the regular hours have been exceeded.

18.03 Time off in Lieu of Overtime

Instead of cash payment for overtime or callout, an employee may request to receive time off at the appropriate overtime rate at a mutually agreeable time. In the event time off cannot be operationally accommodated by June 30th following the date the overtime was worked, payment shall be made in cash on June 30th.

18.04 Compensation for Work on Paid Holidays

If an employee is required to work on a statutory or public holiday, the employee shall be paid at double the employee's regular hourly rate, plus be given another day off with pay at a mutually agreeable date in lieu of the statutory holiday.

18.05 Call Out Pay Guarantee

An employee who is called out to work outside the employee's regular working hours, shall be paid for a minimum of three (3) hours at overtime rates.

ARTICLE 19 STATUTORY HOLIDAYS

19.01 Statutory Holidays

(a) An eligible employee shall be entitled to a holiday with pay at the employee's regular rate for each of the following statutory holidays:

New Year's Day
Good Friday
Easter Monday
Victoria Day
Dominion Day
Labour Day
Thanksgiving Day
Remembrance Day
Christmas Day
Boxing Day

B.C. Day

and any other day proclaimed by the Federal, Provincial or Municipal government as a holiday and any special school holiday proclaimed by the Minister of Education. Only employees regularly working within the municipal boundary shall be entitled to a municipal holiday.

- (b) A regular employee shall be eligible for each of the statutory holidays.
- (c) A ten (10) month employee shall be eligible for each of the statutory holidays falling within the employee's period of employment.
- (d) A casual employee shall be eligible for a statutory holiday provided the employee has completed fifteen (15) days of work within the thirty (30) calendar days immediately preceding the holiday.
- (e) An employee who works less than full days or full weeks shall have the statutory holiday prorated on the basis of hours of work per week relative to a full-time employee.

19.02 Statutory Holidays - Kitimat Ten Month Employees

Ten (10) month employees shall be paid for the Canada Day and Labour day holidays but shall not be paid for B.C. Day unless they work one (1) day in the week before and one (1) day in the week after that holiday.

Clause 19.02 is Clause 14.1(c) of the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE Local 2052 of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat). It shall continue to apply to the employees of former CUPE Local 2052 of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat) who are employed on February 28, 1999 See Attachment C).

19.03 Holidays on Scheduled Days Off

When any of the above-mentioned holidays fall on an employee's scheduled day off, or is observed during an employee's vacation period, the employee shall receive another day off with pay at a time mutually agreed upon between the employee and the Board.

19.04 When a Holiday Falls on a Non-Working Day

If a statutory or public holiday should fall on a non-working day, the Board shall declare that the working day immediately preceding the holiday or the working day immediately following the holiday or any other day mutually agreed to, shall **be** observed in lieu **of** the holiday. Should the Provincial Government choose another date, then that date shall be observed.

The Maria

ARTICLE 20 VACATIONS

20.01 Length of Vacations - Former CUPE Local 2831 Employees (Terrace)

Regular Employees

A regular employee shall receive an annual vacation with pay in accordance with the employee's years of employment **as** follows:

Less than one year of employment	working days for each month to a maximum of 15 days	6% of annual earnings
In the 2nd year of employment and each year thereafter	15 working days	6% of annual earnings
In the 6th year of employment and each year thereafter	20 working days	8% of annual earnings
In the 13th year of employment and each year thereafter	25 working days	10% of annual earnings
In the 21st year of employment and each year thereafter	30 working days	12% of annual earnings

A casual employee shall only be entitled to four percent (4%) vacation pay. Vacations shall be taken the year in which they are earned. Annual earnings shall include the previous year's vacation pay.

Length of Vacations - Former CUPE Local 2861 Employees (Terrace)

The vacation leave entitlement contained in the following clause 20.01 of the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE, Local 2861 of former School District No. 88 (Terrace) shall continue to be in effect until January 1, 2000. Effective January 2, 2000, these employees shall fall under the vacation leave entitlement provision of the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE, Local 2831 of former School District No. 88 (Terrace). If on January 1, 2000, an employee was entitled to a higher increment level of vacation entitlement under Clause 20.01 of the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE, Local 2861 of former School District No. 88 (Terrace), then those employees shall maintain that higher increment level of vacation; however, they shall only move to a higher increment level of entitlement as dictated by the collective agreement which covers employees of former CUPE, Local 2831 of former School District No. 88 (Terrace).

A regular employee shall receive an annual vacation with pay in accordance with the employee's years of employment as follows:

Less than one year of employment		6% of annual earnings
In the 2nd year of employment and each year thereafter	15 working days	6% of annual earnings
In the 6th year of employment and each year thereafter	20 working days	8% of annual earnings
In the 13th year of employment and each year thereafter	25 working days	10% of annual earnings
In the 18th year of employment and each year thereafter	30 working days	12% of annual earnings

Vacation pay on paid overtime shall be made on the pay cheques nearest June 30 and December 31.

A casual employee shall only be entitled to four percent (4%) vacation pay. Vacations shall be taken the year in which they are earned. Annual earnings shall include the previous year's vacation pay.

. . .

20.01 Length of Vacations - CUPE Local 2052 (Kitimat) as follows:

The vacation leave entitlement contained in the following Clause 15.1 of the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE, Local 2052 of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat) shall continue to be in effect until January 1, 2000. Effective January 2, 2000, these employees shall fall under the vacation leave entitlement provision of the collective agreement covering employees of the former CUPE Local 2831 of former School District No. 88 (Terrace). If on January \$\mathbb{1}\) 2000, an employee was entitled to a higher increment level of vacation entitlement under Clause 15.1 of the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE, Local 2052 of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat), then those employees shall maintain that higher increment level of vacation; however, they shall only move to a higher increment level of entitlement as dictated by the collective agreement which covers employees of former CUPE, Local 2831 of former School District No. 88 (Terrace).

A regular employee shall receive an annual vacation with pay in accordance with the employee's years of employment as follows:

Regular part time and full time employees shall receive annual vacations with pay in the following manner:

(a)	Employees with less than one (1) year	4%
(b)	Employees with one (1) year or more but less than six (6) years	15 working days
(c)	Employees with six (6) years or more but less than twelve (12) years	20 working days
(d)	Employees with twelve (1) years or more but less than twenty (20) years	25 working days
(e)	Employees with twenty (20) years or more	30 working days

Employees who leave the employment of the Board prior to December 31 in any one year and who have taken their annual vacation, shall be required to repay the employer for unearned vacation which has been taken.

20.02 Part-Time Employees

For the purpose of determining vacation entitlement for regular part-time employees, ten (10) months' employment shall be considered to be equal to a year's service. Regular part-time employees and ten (10) month employees shall receive vacation pay prorated on the basis of hours of work relative to a full-time employee in accordance with the percentages in Article 20.01.

20.03 Leaving Board Service

An employee leaving the service of the Board before taking vacation shall be entitled to a proportionate payment of wages in lieu of such vacation. An employee leaving the service of the Board after taking vacation may be required to repay a proportionate amount. A deceased employee's estate shall be credited with the value of vacation credits owing.

A regular employee, who terminates service before completing one (I) year of service, shall only receive four percent (4%) vacation (effective July 1,1990).

20.04 Vacation Period

Vacations shall be taken at a time most convenient to the operation of the School District, subject to Article 20.07 and, where practical, at least three (3) weeks will be granted during the months of July and August, or at a mutually acceptable time arranged between the Board and the employee. In the event of conflicting vacation date preferences, the choice shall be determined in accordance with seniority.

20.05 Approved Leave of Absence During Vacation

Where an employee qualifies for sick leave, bereavement or any other approved leave during the employee's period of vacation, there shall be no deduction from vacation credits for such absence. The period of vacation so displaced shall either be added to the vacation period or reinstated for use at a later date as mutually agreed.

20.06 Call Back From Vacation

An employee who is called back to work during a vacation period shall be paid at double time rates for all hours worked plus have the vacation day reinstated.

20.07 School Clerical Staff Vacations

Ten (I0) month staff will take their annual vacations during Christmas and Spring Breaks when the schools are closed in accordance with the Ministry of Education School Calendar, unless other mutually agreeable arrangements are made between the employee and the employee's supervisor. Employees entitled to additional days may take them accordingly at the end of the school year.

ARTICLE 21 SICK LEAVE

21.01 Sick Leave Defined

"Sick Leave" means the period of time a regular employee is permitted to be absent from work with or without pay, by virtue of sickness, unavoidable quarantine or accident **for** which compensation is not payable under the *Workers' Compensation Act*.

(b) Regular part-time employees shall receive sick leave prorated in accordance with hours of work per month relative to hours of work of a regular full-time employee.

21.02 Accumulation of Sick Leave

Sick leave shall be granted to regular employees on the basis of one and one-half (1½) days for every month of service. The unused portion of an employee's sick leave shall accrue for the employee's future benefits to a maximum of one hundred and twenty (120) days. A deduction shall be made from accumulated sick leave of all normal working days (exclusive of statutory holidays) absent for sick leave. Ten (10) days of work in any month shall result in the accumulation of one and one-half (1½) days sick leave.

21.03 Sick Leave During Leave of Absence or Layoff

When an employee is given leave of absence for any reason or is laid off on account of lack of work, sick leave credits shall not accumulate for the period of such absence but shall retain cumulative credit.

21.04 Extension of Sick Leave

- (a) An employee who has exhausted sick leave credits or does not qualify for sick leave with pay shall be allowed up to three (3) years leave of absence without pay.
- (b) Where a physician's statement of illness indicates a strong prognosis of imminent recovery, the employee shall be granted extension of the leave for a further six (6) months beyond the leave granted in (a) above, following which the employee shall be deemed terminated for cause.

21.05 Proof of Illness

An employee may be required to produce a certificate from a duly qualified medical practitioner for any illness. The Board shall pay for medical certificates upon presentation of a receipt.

21.06 Sick Leave Records

A record of all unused sick leave shall be kept by the Board. An employee is to be advised on application of the amount of sick leave accrued to the employee's credit.

21.07 Illness in the Family

Where no one in the family other than the employee can provide for the needs, during illness, of an immediate member of the family, an employee may be entitled, after notifying the employee's supervisor, to use a maximum of three (3) accumulated sick leave days per illness for this purpose subject to an annual limit of six (6) days.

21.08 Payment of Unused Sick Leave

An employee entitled to sick leave under this Article shall receive, upon termination of employment, the following percentum of unused accumulated sick leave after a minimum of ten (1) years continuous service:

- i 25% of unused sick leave after 10 years of service to a maximum of thirty (30) days;
- ii 40% of unused sick leave after 15 years of service to a maximum of forty-eight (48) days;
- iii 60% of unused sick leave after 20 years of service to a maximum of seventy-two (72) days.

Payment of unused sick leave as entitled shall be made to the estate in case of death of an employee.

21.09 Sick Leave Credits - Former CUPE 2861 (Terrace)

Employees shall carry over any sick leave credits which they currently have in their accumulated sick leave bank.

21.10 Sick Leave Credits - Former CUPE Local 2052 (Kitimat)

Employees of the Former School District No. 80 (Kitimat), CUPE Local 2052, shall carry over any sick leave credits which they currently have in their accumulated sick leave bank. If an employee has more than the one hundred and twenty (120) day limit of sick leave credits, the employee shall not accrue any further sick leave credits unless they fall below one hundred and twenty (120) days of sick leave credits. Once they fall below 120 days of sick leave credits, they may not accrue above one hundred and twenty (120) days of sick leave credits.

ARTICLE 22 LEAVE OF ABSENCE

22.01 Union Business

The Board agrees to grant time off during any working day to officers of the Union in the employ of the Board for Union business purposes. The Union shall reimburse the Board the employee's regular wages and ten percent (10%) for benefits for such leave.

22.02 Grievance Pay Provisions

The Board agrees that time spent in settling grievances during regular working hours, pursuant to Article 11 or 12, by up to two (2) Union representatives, shall be considered as time worked and paid at regular rates of pay.

22.03 Negotiation Pay Provisions

Up to six (6) bargaining representatives in the employ of the District shall have the right of attending collective bargaining meetings with the Board if held during regular working hours, without loss of remuneration. The Union agrees to notify the Board of the names of such employees.

22.04 Leave of Absence for Union Functions

- (a) Upon request to the Board, eight (8) employees elected or appointed to represent the Union at conventions shall be allowed leave of absence. Granting of such leaves shall be contingent on operational requirements and shall not be unreasonably withheld.
- (b) Upon request to the Board, employees may be granted leave of absence to attend executive and committee meetings and seminars of CUPE, its affiliated or chartered bodies and any labour organizations with which the Union is affiliated. Such leave shall not be unreasonably withheld.
- (c) During leave of absence for Union functions, the employer agrees to maintain the employee's regular wages and benefits. The Union shall reimburse the employer the employee's regular wages and ten percent (10%) for benefits for such leave.

22.05 Leave for Full-time Union Officials

An employee who is elected or appointed to a full-time position with the Canadian Union of Public Employees shall be entitled to leave without pay and with retention of seniority accumulation up to the date of commencing leave. Such leave shall be for a period of one (1) year or less if so requested.

Upon return to work, the employee shall be returned to the employee's former job. This leave may be renewed up to a maximum of five (5) years, however, if the leave runs consecutively for more than one (1) year, upon return to work, the Board may place the employee in any position for which the employee is qualified, provided that a full-time employee shall have the right to return to a full-time position.

22.06 Bereavement Leave

An employee shall be granted up to five (5) regularly scheduled consecutive work days leave without loss of salary or wages, in the case of the death of a parent, spouse, common law spouse, brother, sister, child, grandparent, grandchild, mother-in-law, father-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, son-in-law or daughter-in-law. Reasonable leave of absence may be granted with or without pay for travel and estate affairs. Any other request for bereavement leave shall be considered under Article 22.10. Upon application, and subject to operational requirements, leave shall be granted with pay for up to one (1)

day for an employee to attend the funeral of a friend or relative who is not a member of the immediate family. Additional days may be granted without pay for travel where necessary

22.07 Compassionate Leave - Former CUPE Local 2052 (Kitimat)

In the event of critical illness (believed to be terminal) in the immediate family and the employee attends to that member of the family he shall be granted leave of absence with pay for five (5) working days plus two (2) working days of travel time if required. Immediate family shall be as defined in the Bereavement Leave Article 22.06 with the addition of step and foster children and step and foster parents.

Clause 22.07 is Clause 17.2 of the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE Local 2052 of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat). It shall continue to apply to the employees of former CUPE Local 2052 of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat) who are employed on February 28, 1999 (See Article C).

22.08 Maternity/Adoption/Parental Leave

An employee shall have the right, upon written request, to leave of absence for pregnancy and adoption on the following basis:

(a) An employee shall be granted unpaid leave to a maximum of six (6) months at the employee's option. The employee shall notify the Board at least three (3) weeks prior to returning to the job. The employee shall be placed in the employee's former job, or another which is consistent with the employee's seniority, qualifications and former salary.

Seniority shall continue to accumulate during this leave and upon reinstatement all increments to wages and benefits to which the employee would have been entitled had the leave not been taken shall be reinstated. The Board shall continue to provide its share of coverage and pay its share of premiums for all the employee benefits and pension plan while on maternity leave.

(b) Parental Leave

Parental Leave will be as set out in the Employment Standards Act of B.C.

Subject to the Employment Standards Act the Board shall continue to provide its share of coverage and pay its share of the premiums for all the employee's benefits.

(c) If during the maternity/parental leave or prior to taking either leave, an employee indicates in writing that a longer period of leave is required than allowed above, then upon conclusion of the maternity/parental leave, the employee shall be considered on leave of absence for up to an additional twelve (12) months. The Board will continue to provide coverage for all employee benefit plans, provided the

employee pays the premiums. Seniority does not accumulate during this period of leave. The employee shall notify the Board at least four (4) weeks prior to wishing to return to work. The Board shall endeavour to place the employee in a job consistent with the employee's qualifications and seniority which does not result in the layoff or demotion of another employee. The Board is under no obligation to reinstate the employee unless a vacancy occurs. Upon the conclusion of this additional leave, an employee shall be considered on layoff and the provisions of Article 14.05 shall apply.

- (d Where the pregnancy is terminated before the employee requests leave, the Board shall, on receipt of a medical certificate, grant the employee leave of up to six (6) weeks during which time the benefits of Article 22.07(a) shall apply.
- Where the mother dies before or following the birth of the child or she becomes disabled and a male employee qualifies for benefits under the Unemployment Insurance Act (spousal maternity benefits) the provisions of this Article shall, upon request, be granted to him.
- (f) An employee adopting a child shall be entitled to the provisions **as** set out in subsections (a) and (b) above.

22.09 Paid Jury or Court Witness Duty Leave

The Board shall grant leave of absence to an employee who serves as a juror or as a subpoenaed court witness other than on the employee's own behalf. The Board shall pay such an employee the difference between the employee's normal earnings and the payment received for jury service or court witness, excluding payment for travelling, meals or other expenses. The employee will present proof of service and the amount of pay received.

22.10 General Leave

The Board may, upon written request, grant leave of absence with or without pay and without loss of seniority to a regular employee requesting such leave for good and sufficient cause. Seniority shall accrue for up to ninety (90) calendar days after which seniority will be retained.

22.1 Leave for Public Duties

The Board recognises the right of employees to participate in public affairs. Upon request to the Secretary Treasurer, an employee shall be granted leave of absence without pay to allow that employee to stand as a candidate in federal, provincial or municipal elections. An employee who is elected to public office shall, upon request, be granted leave of absence without pay and without seniority accumulation during the term of office.

22.12 Medical Care Leave

When medical services and/or medical facilities are not available in the community of residence or work, an employee or the employee's dependants may be referred by a doctor or dentist to a medical practitioner or medical facility in another municipality.

When such referrals are made and the appointment cannot be scheduled in a way that avoids disruption of work or vacation the employee shall be allowed paid leave of absence in order to attend or to accompany dependants if medically required. On request, employees shall show proof of the need for medical care leave. Such leave shall be deducted from the employee's accumulated sick leave.

In such cases, the per diem payable will be in accordance with Board Policy 1.06, to a maximum of ten (10) days per occurrence. The maximum total expense to the Board will be three thousand dollars (\$3,000) for the term of this agreement.

22.13 Special Leave

- (a) Employee's marriage three (3) days paid leave
- (b) Birth of male employee's child one (1) day paid leave

ARTICLE23 PAYMENT OF WAGES AND ALLOWANCES

23.01 Pay Days

The Board shall pay wages biweekly, every second Friday, in accordance with Schedule "A" attached hereto and forming part of this Collective Agreement. The Board shall direct deposit the pay cheque of each employee to an account in the bank or credit union of the employee's choice. **An** employee's pay cheque shall detail hours of work, premiums, rates of pay and each deduction.

23.02 Assignments and Substitutes

An employee who, for a period of one **()** orking day or longer, is assigned to or substitutes on any job during the absence of another employee, or who performs the duties of a higher classification, shall receive, from the beginning, the rate as if promoted to the job or the employee's rate, whichever is the greater.

23.03 Vacation Pay Procedure

- (a) Employees shall receive on the last office day preceding commencement of their annual vacation any monies which may fall due during the period of their vacation, if requested by the employee at least two (2) weeks prior to commencement of the vacation.
- (b) Ten (10) month employees shall receive vacation pay on each pay cheque.

- (c) An employee determined percentage of each pay cheque shall be deposited to a separate account if requested in writing by the employee. Only two (2) separate accounts will be allowed at any time.
- (d) The practice for paying vacation pay to ten (10) month employees working in the geographical area of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat), shall continue until the next round of collective bargaining has been completed.

23.04 Increments - Promotion, Demotion

An employee who **is** promoted or demoted (moves to a classification with higher or lower maximum respectively) will be placed at the next higher dollar figure on the new range in the case **of** promotion, and the next lower dollar figure on the new range in the case of demotion. In either case, the new increment date is the date of the change.

23.05 Head Custodian Premium

A custodian, for purposes of determining sick leave benefits, shall have the head custodian premium included as part of regular wages.

ARTICLE 24 JOB CLASSIFICATION AND RECLASSIFICATION

24.01 Classification Changes and New Positions

When the duties in any classification are substantially changed, or when a new position is created, the rate **of** pay shall be subject to negotiation between the Board and the Union. If the parties are unable to agree as to the classification and/or rate of pay of the job in question, such dispute shall be submitted to arbitration. The new rate shall become retroactive to the time the position was first filled by an employee.

ARTICLE 25 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

25.01 Health Plans

The Board shall pay ninety percent (90%) of the premiums and the employees shall pay ten percent (10%) of the premiums of the following plans as a condition of employment for those regular employees who have completed their probationary period and do not have other similar coverage.

- (a) B.C. Government Medical Plan;
- (b) Extended Health Benefit Plan (An eyeglass option providing \$200/family member/2 years); (Effective July 1, 1989, premiums paid 100% by Board). Effective July 1, 1995 the Extended Health Benefits plan will include \$1,000,000 maximum benefit per insured.
- (c) Dental Plan which provides 100% A; 60% B; 50% C;

(d) Medical Travel Benefits (Extended Health Benefit Plan Supplement). (Effective July 1, 1989, premiums paid 100% by Board).

The Board will consult with the Union prior to any change in benefit coverage or insurance carriers.

25.02 Pension

- (a) All eligible employees covered by the Agreement shall participate in and be covered by the provisions of the *Pension (Municipal)Act.*
- (b) An employee reaching the maximum retirement age may, at the discretion of the Board, continue in the Board's employment on a year to year basis following the employee's 65th birthday.

25.03 Group Life Insurance

All eligible regular employees who have completed their probationary period shall, as a condition of employment, be covered under the terms and conditions of a group life insurance plan with benefits at two (2) times annual salary. The Board shall pay one hundred percent (100%) of the premium.

25.04 Long Term Disability Plan

- (a) The Board agrees to administer a Union sponsored Long Term Disability Plan for eligible employees. The Plan and carrier shall be determined by the Union.
- (b) Upon completion of the probation period, all regular employees working fifteen (15) or more hours per week and not otherwise covered by a wage loss replacement plan shall participate in the Plan as a condition of employment.
- (c) The Board agrees to deduct the premium from the earnings of each enrolled employee and forward the premiums and required reports once a month to the carrier of the Plan with a copy to the Union.
- (d) Employees employed in the geographical area of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat) shall continue to be covered under the Long Term Disability Plan described in Clause 16.9 of the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE, Local 2052 of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat), as follows: The Board agrees to administer a CUPE Local 2052 sponsored Long Term Disability Plan. All regular employees working fifteen (15) or more hours a week shall enroll in the Plan as a condition of employment. During the elimination period and while drawing benefits, a disabled employee shall be considered on approved leave of absence.

25.05 Continuation of Benefits

(a) The Board shall continue the benefits of Article 25.01 and 25.03 when an employee is absent due to sickness or accident. Payment of the premiums by

the Board shall be limited to six **(6)** months or the length of the employee's service, whichever is the lesser unless receiving WCB top up payments from sick leave for more than six **(6)** months, in which case until the top up payments cease.

- (b) The Board shall continue the benefits of Article 25.01 and 25.03 during the summer months, provided the assignment of the employee is on the basis of ten (10) months a year and provided the employee returns to the job in September.
- In other cases, an employee may continue coverage for any of the benefits so long as the employee is on approved leave of absence or retains recall rights, provided the employee pays the entire premium to the Board each month and provided the carrier of the Plan permits such coverage.

25.06 Workers' Compensation Pay Supplement

An employee prevented from performing regular work with the Board on account of an occupational accident that is recognised by the Workers' Compensation Board as compensable within the meaning of the Act, shall upon request receive from the Board the difference between the amount payable by the Workers' Compensation Board and the employee's regular salary. Such difference shall be deducted from the employee's accumulated sick leave, provided the employee has such benefits to the employee's credit. Should the employee have no sick leave to the employee's credit, then the employee shall be entitled only to the amount paid by the Workers' Compensation Board.

25.07 Employee Assistance Program

During the term of this Collective Agreement, the Board and the Union shall design and implement a joint Employee Assistance Program for all employees, including the Teachers' Association. The Board will pay fifty percent (50%) of the cost of this program.

25.08 Reimbursement for Vehicle Damage or Theft

The Board shall reimburse an employee to a maximum of one hundred dollars (\$100.00) deductible on an insurance claim due to theft or vandalism which occurred at the workplace or in the course of employment. An employee who makes a claim for reimbursement must have the claim accepted by the insurance company and must have filed a report with the proper authorities.

25.09 Registered Retirement Savings Plan (RRSP) - Former CUPE Local 2052 (Kitimat)

The Board, upon written request from an employee, shall deduct an agreed amount from the employee's pay and submit same to the employee's RRSP.

Clause 25.09 is Clause 16.13 of the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE Local 2052. It shall continue to apply to all employees in former CUPE Local 2052 of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat) who are currently having RRSP deductions made under this clause (See Attachment E). Should an employee decide not to have any RRSP deductions made on his/her behalf in any one school year, their name shall be removed from the list.

ARTICLE 26 VIDEO DISPLAY TERMINALS

26.01 Video Display Terminals (VDTs)

Where a pregnant employee who regularly works with VDTs requests a transfer away from the equipment for medical reasons and where the Board can accommodate it, the Board will grant such a transfer. If the transfer cannot be arranged the employee may take an unpaid leave of absence until she qualifies for maternity leave. Upon qualifying for maternity leave the benefits of Article 22.08 shall be initiated.

ARTICLE 27 SAFETY AND HEALTH

27.01 Clothing

The Board shall provide and clean all protective clothing, coveralls and gloves as required. When the Board requires an employee to wear safety footwear, the Board shall pay fifty percent (50%) of the cost of such footwear.

27.02 Clothing - Former CUPE Local 2052 (Kitimat)

The Board shall provide suitable wet weather clothing for employees working in the rain or snow. The wet weather clothing supplied to Teaching Assistants and Noon Hour Supervisors shall be stored at each school. The Board shall also provide reflective safety vests when the employee's working conditions warrant them.

Clause 27.02 is 20.1(a) of the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE Local 2052 of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat). Employees employed in the geographical area of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat) shall continue to be covered by Clause 27.02.

27.03 Injury Pay Provisions

An employee who is injured during working hours and is required to leave for treatment or is sent home as a result of such injury shall receive payment for the remainder of the shift at the employee's regular rate of pay, without deduction from sick leave, unless a doctor or nurse states that the employee is fit for further work on that shift. An employee who has received payment under this section, for a compensable injury, shall receive payment for time necessarily spent for further medical treatment of the injury

during regularly scheduled working hours, subsequent to the day of the accident, when W.C.B. does not provide for wage **loss**.

27.04 Transportation of Accident Victims

Transportation to the nearest physician or hospital for employees requiring medical care as a result of an accident at work shall be at the expense **of** the Board.

27.05 District Safety Committee

- (a) The Local shall appoint three (3) members to the School District Safety Committee.
- (b) The Committee shall conduct its affairs in accordance with WCB Regulations.
- (c) Chair and Secretary

The chair and secretary shall be elected from and by the members of the committee. Where the chair is a Board member, the secretary shall **be** an employee member and vice versa.

(d) Meetings of the Committee

The Health and Safety Committee shall meet regularly and review and recommend on matters either raised or referred to that pertain to health and safety.

(e) Safe and Healthful Place of Work and Learning

The Health and Safety Committee shall assist in creating a safe and healthful place of work and learning.

(f) Responsibilities of the Committee

The Committee shall:

- (i) determine that regular inspections of the places of employment are carried out as required by Regulation 8.08 of the Industrial Health and Safety Regulations, Workers' Compensation Board of British Columbia.
- (ii) upon request, review the provision of health services as outlined in the School Act.
- (iii) recommend measures required to attain compliance with the School Act, the Industrial Safety Regulations and the Workers' Compensation Act and the correction of hazardous conditions.
- (iv) consider recommendations from site committees and recommend implementationwhere warranted.
- (v) hold no less than three (3) meetings per year at mutually agreeable times and dates. If meetings are held during school hours, release time at Board

expense shall be allowed for employees who are members of the Committee. The Committee shall review:

- (a) reports of current accidents, their causes, and means of prevention.
- (b) remedial action taken or required by the reports of investigations and inspections.
- (c) any other matters pertinent to health and safety.

(g) Minutes of meetings

The Health and Safety Committee shall maintain minutes of the meetings and circulate these minutes to the appropriate parties.

27.06 Workplace Violence

- (a) definition of violence: Any incident in which an employee is abused, threatened or assaulted during the course of employment.
- (b) reporting violent incidents: The Board and the Union agree to encourage the reporting of all incidents of violence.
- (c) the Labour Management Committee will review the subject of workplace violence during the term of this Agreement.

27.07 Situations of Immediate Danger

Where a situation is of immediate danger to an employee or student, the employee shall act judiciously to mitigate the danger and then report the situation to the appropriate Administrative Officer. The employee shall be advised of the actions taken to ensure the situation is remedied.

27.08 Health and Safety Problems

Other specific health and safety problems shall be reported to the appropriate Administrative Officer and may also be referred to the Health and Safety Committee through the site committee.

27.09 First Aid Certificate - Former CUPE Local 2052 (Kitimat)

- (a) The Board shall pay to all employees who hold a valid Level I First Aid Certificate twenty dollars (\$20.00) per month.
- (b) The Board agrees to reimburse any bargaining unit members who have successfully completed a course recognized by WCB Occupational First Aid Regulations, the cost of tuition and course materials. Where the Board requests an employee to take a course, the Board shall prepay such costs.

Clause 27.09 is Clause 18.4 of the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE Local 2052 of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat). The clause shall continue to apply to all employees who are currently receiving the first aid or industrial first aid allowance under this clause.

27.10 Industrial First Aid Certificate - Former CUPE Local 2052 (Kitimat)

The Board shall pay up to two (2) employees who hold valid and subsisting Workers' Compensation Board Industrial First Aid Certificates and who are employed at Mount Elizabeth Secondary School, a premium of fifty dollars (\$50.00) per month.

The employees shall be selected for this on a "first come - first served" basis in the order in which they file copies of their certificates with the Secretary-Treasurer.

Clause 27.10 is Clause 18.5 of the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE Local 2052 of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat). The clause shall continue to apply to all employees who are currently receiving the first aid or industrial first aid allowance under this clause.

ARTICLE 28 TECHNOLOGICAL CHANGE

28.01 Definition

"Technological change" means:

- (a) The introduction by the Board of a change in its work, undertaking or business, or a change in its equipment or material from the equipment or material previously used by the Board in its work, undertaking or business, or
- (b) A change in the manner the Board carries on its work, undertaking or business (related to the introduction of that equipment or material).

28.02 Advance Notice

Three (3) months before the introduction of technological change the Board shall notify the Union of the proposed change. The Board and the Union will meet to discuss the changes and the measures if any to be taken by the Board and the Union to protect the employees from anticipated adverse effects.

28.03 Income Protection and Transfers

A regular employee who is displaced shall be offered an opportunity to bid on jobs held by employees with less seniority, providing the displaced employee possesses the qualifications required of the job held by the junior employee. An employee placed in a lower-rated position as a result of technological change shall not have wages reduced but shall continue to receive the employee's old rate until such time as the Collective Agreement rate for the employee's new position is equal to the employee's actual rate of pay. An employee whose services are terminated by the Board because of technological change shall be entitled to severance pay equivalent to one **()** yeek's pay for each year of service.

28.04 Training Benefits

Where new or greater skills are required than those already possessed by affected employees, where feasible such employees shall, at the expense of the Board, be given a reasonable period of time, during which they may perfect or acquire the skills necessitated by the technological change. There shall be no reduction in salary or benefits during the training period and no reduction in pay upon being reclassified in the new position.

ARTICLE 29 GENERAL CONDITIONS

29.01 Courses of Instruction

An employee requested by the Board to take training to update or upgrade skills or to learn new skills shall receive reasonable notice of such required training.

The Board shall pay the following related expenses:

- i) required registration/tuition fees;
- i) necessary books and materials;
- iii) travel, meals, accommodation in accordance with Board policy.

The employee agreeing to take such training shall do so without loss of pay and without loss of benefits.

29.02 Harassment

The Parties agree that all persons have the right to work without harassment. A claim of harassment by an employee shall be considered a grievance.

29.03 Intra-District Communications and Bulletin Boards

The Board shall supply bulletin boards in the schools, Board office, District office, Maintenance Shops and Resource Centre so that the Union may post information of interest to its members. The Union has the right to circulate information via the interschool delivery service, district fax machines (for receiving information only), and such information shall be posted on the CUPE bulletin board as soon as possible after receipt.

29.04 Copies of Agreement

The Board and the Union agree to print the Agreement in booklet form and share in the costs.

29.05 Work of the Bargaining Unit

(a) Contracting Out

No regular employee shall be laid off or have regular income reduced as a consequence of contracting out of work or services normally performed by members of the bargaining unit.

(b) Volunteers

No regular member of the bargaining unit will be laid off as a result of the use of volunteers and volunteers will not be used to displace hours held by existing CUPE employees.

(c) Work of the Bargaining Unit

Work customarily performed by the employees in the bargaining unit shall not be done by other employees of the Board, except for the purpose of development, audit, quality control, on-the-job training, instruction of employees or in cases of emergency.

29.06 Professional Development

(a) The Board agrees to allow employees covered by this Agreement to conduct an inservice training seminar on a day designated as professional development for teachers. The date and agenda shall be subject to the approval of the Secretary-Treasurer. An employee attending such a seminar shall be paid the employee's regular wages for that day. All employees may attend this CUPE professional development day.

It is understood that in special circumstances the Administrative Officer may request that a specific employee remain at the employee's work site for that day. Any dispute arising from this provision shall be dealt with beginning at Step 2 of the grievance procedure.

(b) The Board will deposit three thousand dollars (\$3,000) annually to a fund for jobrelated professional development. This amount of three thousand dollars (\$3,000) will be matched by the Union. The Union will give the Board an accounting of the money spent annually and invite a trustee to sit on the Union Professional Development Committee. ❖ It is noted that the current one thousand dollars (\$1,000) being offered by the Board for the CUPE Professional Development Day will continue.

29.07 Use of School Facilities

The Union shall have the right to use School Board facilities and equipment for meetings and other Union activities in accordance with Board policy on the use of school facilities and subject to normal booking procedures.

29.08 Pre-Retirement Seminar

The Board may grant a leave of absence without pay and without loss of benefits of two (2) days to employees with a minimum of ten (10) years service with the Board and who are age forty (40) or more, to attend the CUPE pre-retirement seminar. The Union will pay registration fees.

If the above approved seminar falls on a non-instructional day, the employee shall receive the employee's regular wages for the day when attending the seminar.

29.09 Medical Procedures

Employees requested to perform medical/health procedures in accordance with Level II of the Province of British Columbia Protocol Agreement - In school support for special needs student - shall be given child-specific training by appropriate professional health personnel. A record of such training shall be maintained by the employee and the Board.

There shall be on-going re-evaluation of the training, and there shall be updates to the training as required by the Board.

Where practicable there shall be a trained alternate.

29.10 Medication

Employees shall be responsible for the administration of medications to students under the following conditions:

- (a) The parent has requested the school's assistance in writing and signed a release concerning administration of the medication by the employee;
- (b) The Northwest Community Health Services Society has been informed and a medical alert card completed;
- (c) The employee has been trained by staff from the Health Unit in the administration of the medication and possible side effects;
- (d) The medication is stored in a locked storage place;
- (e) The medication is supplied in blister packages if possible;
- Records are kept detailing the administration of the medication.

29.11 Injections and Inoculations

- (a) All new employees shall be required to undergo a TB test.
- (b) Employees who wish to receive flu shots but do not qualify for such flu shots through the Health Unit, shall have the cost of the shot paid by the Board. However, the employee shall schedule such shots on his own time.
- (c) The Board will set aside six hundred dollars (\$600.00) annually for employees who wish to receive the Hepatitis "B" vaccination series at the same time as students. Allocations of these funds shall be on a first-come first-served basis.

29.12 Examination of Students

The examination of students for communicable diseases or infestations shall not be the responsibility of a member of the bargaining unit. However, an employee who suspects a child may have a communicable disease or infestation shall report the concern to an administrator for investigation.

29.13 Indemnification

The School Board agrees to defend, save harmless, and indemnify all CUPE Local 2052 employees from any proceedings which may be brought against them and which arise from the lawful performance of their duties.

29.14 Employee Absence

When an employee is going to be absent from work the employee will contact the appropriate administration representative or designate.

29.15 Board Meetings

The Board shall provide agendas and minutes of all public Board meetings and all attachments thereto at the time of distribution to the Board.

29.16 PACES Day-care Facility

PACES Day-care facility to be provided services by bargaining unit.

ARTICLE 30 GENERAL

30.01 Plural or Feminine Terms May Apply

Wherever the singular, masculine or feminine is used in this Agreement, it shall be considered as if the plural, feminine or masculine has been used where the context of the Party or Parties **so** require.

ARTICLE 31 TERM OF AGREEMENT

31.01 Duration

This Agreement shall be binding and remain in effect from July 1, 1994 to June 30, 1997 and shall continue from year to year thereafter unless either Party gives to the other Party notice to commence collective bargaining in accordance with the *British Columbia Labour Relations Code*.



SIGNATURE PAGE

SIGNED THIS 2200 DAY OF Nowher, 7999.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF: SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 82 (COAST MOUNTAINS)

CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES, LOCAL 2052

SCHEDULE "A" Job Classifications, Former Local 2831

SCHEDULE "A"

	START RATE			
CLASSIFICATION	JAN. I 1997	AFTER TWO YEARS		
Crossing Guard	\$ 9.88			
Noon Hour Supervisor	11.56			
CATEGORY NO.1				
Special Services Assistant I Library Assistant Classroom Teacher Assistant Rehabilitation Worker I School Meal Co-ordinator	\$14.60	\$15.47		
CATEGORY NO.2				
School Secretary I Home/School Co-ordinator I Special Services Assistant II Resource Centre Clerical Rehabilitation Worker II Central Substitute Call-Out Secretary NO.	15.73	16.47		
CATEGORY 3				
School Secretary II Home/School Co-ordinator II	16.41	17.15		
CATEGORY NO. 4				
Financial Administration Education Administration School Secretary III Home/School Co-ordinator III Library Assistant (in charge Secondary)	17.86	18.73		

SCHEDULE "B"

Job Classification Former Local 2861 (Terrace)

Classification	July 1, 1994 (1.2%)	July 1, 1995 (0.3%)	July 1, 1996 (0.76%)
Labour - Student	\$12.43	\$12.47	\$12.56
Casual Labourer	\$ 15.29	\$15.34	\$15.46
Base Rate Labourer	\$15.77	\$15.82	\$15.94
Custodian	\$16.41	\$16.46	\$16.59
Groundsman	\$16.69	\$16.74	\$16.87
Maintenance I	\$16.79	\$16.84	\$16.97
(Apprentices or Helpers)			
Maintenancell	\$17.44	\$17.49	\$17.62
Maintenance	\$17.67	\$17.72	\$17.85
Bus Driver	\$17.83	\$17.88	\$18.02
Maintenance Tradesman Not certified (Carpenter, Electrician, Painter, Plumber, Mechanic etc.)	\$19.32	\$19.38	\$19.53
Tradesman/T.Q.	\$21.27	\$21.33	\$21.49
Maintenance Foreman	\$21.58	\$21.64	\$21.80

SCHEDULE "C" Former Local 2052 (Kitimat) HOURLY RATES

Former Local 2052 (Kitimat) HOURLY RATES

GROUP		2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10
Points To	0-114	115- 128	129- 143	144- 159	160- 176	177- 194	195- 213	214- 233	234- 254	255- 276
Months										
0	14.93	15.35	15.86	16.32	16.80	17.35	17.85	18.12	18.47	18.84
Probation Complete	15.29	15.76	16.26	16.76	17.26	17.77	18.37	18.52	18.80	19.13
12	15.67	16.14	16.69	17.20	17.74	18.38	18.87	18.95	19.17	19.39
15								19.37	19.87	20.26

Casual Clerical Rate: \$16.32 (first step of Job Group 4)

C.U.P.E. GRID EFFECTIVE JULY 1997 - MAINTENANCE/JANITORIAL - PLUS 1.2%

FOREMAN	T.4	24.40
ELECTRICIAN	T.2	23.26
CARPENTER	T.2	23.26
HEATING ENGINEER	T.2	23.26
HEAD JANITOR	T.2	23.26
MAINTENANCE I	T. I	22.65
MAINTENANCE II	9	21.13
GROUNDSPERSON	COMPOSITE	20.20
MAINTENANCE III	6	20.03
BUS DRIVER I	6	20.03
MAINTENANCE IV	5	19.63
BUS DRIVER II	COMPOSITE	19.55
JANITOR *(see note)	COMPOSITE	19.46
JANITOR I	3	18.89
LABOURER	3	18.89
JANITOR II	I	18.21
STUDENT	0	13.59

^{*}Note - rate equals Janitor I plus 3%

<u>SCHEDULE "D"</u> JOB GROUP LISTING OF POSITIONS, Former Local 2052 Kitimat

SCHEDULE"D"

(Schedule "C" of Former Local 2052 (Kitimat)

JOBGROUP LISTING OF POSITIONS

CLERICAL

TEACHER ASSISTANTS AND PARAPROFESSIONALS

JOB GROUP	POSITION JO	B GROUP
10 10	Hospital Homebound Child Care Worker Native Resource Assistant	10 10
10	Teacher Assistant I	7
8	Graphics Technician	7
7	Technical Director	7
ol 6	Foods Assistant, KCH	5
Office 6	Teaching Assistant	4
y School 6	Science Assistant	4
hool 6	Graphics Assistant	4
ol 5	Theatre Assistant	4
5	Audio Visual Assistant	4
5		
4		
4		
4		
ool 1		
	10 10 10 8 7 ol 6 Office 6 y School 6 hool 6	10 Hospital Homebound Child Care Worker 10 Native Resource Assistant 10 Teacher Assistant I 8 Graphics Technician 7 Technical Director 10 Foods Assistant, KCH 11 Office 6 Teaching Assistant 12 Science Assistant 13 Graphics Assistant 14 Audio Visual Assistant 15 Audio Visual Assistant 16 Audio Visual Assistant 17 Audio Visual Assistant 18 Audio Visual Assistant

SCHEDULE "E" ALLOCATION OF POSITIONS BY DEPARTMENT

SCHEDULE "E"

Schedule "B" of Former Local 2052 (Kitimat)

ALLOCATION OF POSITIONS BY DEPARTMENT

1. The <u>Clerical</u> Department includes the following positions:

Bookkeeper Accounts Clerk

Secretary-Secondary School Clerk-Typist, Secondary School

Secretary, Education Office Data Processing Clerk

Payroll Clerk Receptionist

Secretary I, Elementary School Clerk-Typist, Board Office

Resource Centre Clerk Clerk-Typist, Elementary School

Secretary, Elementary School Library Clerk

2. The <u>Custodial</u> Department includes the following positions:

Head Custodian Custodian I

Custodian II

3. The <u>Maintenance</u> Department includes the following positions:

Foreman Maintenance II
Electrician Maintenance III
Heating Engineer Maintenance IV

Maintenance I Labourer

Carpenter

4. The <u>Teacher Assistant and Para-Professional Department includes the following positions:</u>

Hospital Homebound Child
Care Worker
Native Resource Clerk
Science Assistant
Graphics Assistant
Teaching Assistant
Graphics Assistant
Theatre **Ass**istant
Audio Visual Assistant

Noon Hour Supervisor

5. The <u>Transportation</u> Department includes the following positions:

Bus Driver I & II

6. The Board and the Union agree that at the time a new position is created it will be assigned to the appropriate department.

SCHEDULE "F"

Re: HEAD CUSTODIAN Re: DIRTY MONEY

SCHEDULE "F"

HEAD CUSTODIAN

A Head Custodian shall be named in each school in which two (2) or more custodians are assigned. The Head Custodian shall be paid twenty-five dollars (\$25.00) per month for each part-time custodian under his direction (other than the Head Custodian); and fifty dollars (\$50.00) per month for each full-time custodian under his direction (other than the Head Custodian). The Head Custodian, among his duties, shall be responsible for ordering and maintaining required supplies and for the submission of time sheets as required by the Board.

DIRTY MONEY

Dirty Money at \$1,20 per hour shall be paid to employees doing the following work:

- (1) Cleaning domestic hot water tanks
- (2) Rebricking boilers
- (3) Cleaning fuel tanks
- (4) Spray painting
- (5) While exposed to raw sewage
- (6) Installing/removing/cleaning air filters
- (7) Insulating in confined areas
- (8) Working in crawl space with dirt floor

Clauses 18.2(a) and 18.2(b) of the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE, Local 2052 of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat) shall continue to apply to all employees who are currently receiving the reconstruction and construction premium under these clauses. The parties shall confirm this list of employees in a signed off document which will become Attachment "G" of this Collective Agreement.

Clause 18.2 (a) and (b) are as follows:

It is agreed that in addition to the rates of **pay** set forth in Schedule A and Schedule B the following premiums shall apply when applicable:

(a) Reconstruction \$1.00 per hour (b) Construction \$1.25 per hour

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING#1

between

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 82 COAST MOUNTAINS

and

CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES, LOCAL 2052

RE: SPECIAL SERVICES ASSISTANTS

The Parties agree that for the duration of the current contract the following procedure will apply for the classification of Special Services Assistants:

- 1. In addition to the regular hourly rate paid, a PERSONAL CARE ALLOWANCE would be paid for each hour the assistant is assigned to a child diagnosed as being in MINISTRY OF EDUCATION CATEGORIES Dependent Multiple Handicapped, Profoundly Handicapped and Autistic. The hourly premium for the remainder of the current contract will be \$.70.
- 2. Special Services Assistant II (Payroll Category #2)

Those special services assistants possessing the following qualifications will be classified Special Services Assistant II:

Completion of a two week intensive course on a single topic, as approved by the Director of Instruction (Special Services), shall be equivalent to one and one-half university level units.

(a) Option

Two (2) years of successful experience working with special needs children in a K-12 educational environment;

and completion of either;

BRAILLE TRANSCRIPTION COURSE

VISUAL LANGUAGE INTERPRETER TRAINING COURSE

and

three (3) university level units in special education or equivalent as approved by the Director of Instruction (Special Services).

(b) Option 2

Two (2) years of successful experience working with special needs children in a K-12 educational environment

and

completion of twelve (12) university level units (or equivalent) in special education. Each of the following courses provides three (3) of these units: Introduction to Exceptional Children

Teaching Students with Mental Handicaps

Education of Students with Multiple Physical Handicaps

Educating Students with Behaviour and Social Disorders

Technology for Special Needs Students

Diagnosis/Remediation of Learning Disabilities

Teaching the Slower Learner

Behaviour Management

Remedial Reading

Remedial Mathematics

Language Development

Mastery Learning

Signing

Blissymbolics

or equivalent as approved by the Director of Instruction (Special Services).

(c) Option 3

Two (2) years of successful experience working with special needs children in a K-12 educational environment:

and

completion of nine **(9)** university level units (or equivalent) in special education. Each of the following **courses** provides three **(3)** of these units:

Introduction to Exceptional Children

Teaching Students with Mental Handicaps

Education of Students with Multiple Physical Handicaps

Educating Students with Behaviour and Social Disorders

Technology for Special Needs Students

Diagnosis/Remediation of Learning Disabilities

Teaching the Slower Learner

Behaviour Management

Remedial Reading

Remedial Mathematics

Language Development

Mastery Learning

Signing

Blissymbolics

or equivalent as approved by the Director ${\bf d}$ Instruction (Special Services). and

five (5) years of good or superior rated performance in working with special needs children in a K-12 educational environment.

(d) Option 4

Two (2) years of successful experience working with special needs children in a K-12 educational environment:

and

completion of Human Services Worker, Social Services Training Program*, Community Services Program*; Early Childhood Education, or equivalent as approved by the Director of Instruction (Special Services) and

three (3) university level units in special education or equivalent as approved by the Director of Instruction (Special Services).

3. Special Services Assistant I - (Payroll Category # 1)

Special services assistants employed by the Board who do not possess the qualifications or experience necessary to become special services assistants II.

4. IMPLEMENTATION

Classification shall be effective September 1, 1989 or on date of approval of application, whichever is later.

* - subject to confirmation of course equivalency

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING#2

between

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 82 (COAST MOUNTAINS)

and

CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES, LOCAL 2052

Re: School Meal Co-ordinator

The Parties agree that the position(s) of School Meal Co-ordinator(s) shall be paid at Category No. 1 and shall be for one (In) our per day. The additional hours currently worked (1% - 2 hours per month) are agreeable to both Parties. Any further additional hours per month shall be as agreed between the Parties.

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING #3

between

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 82 (COAST MOUNTAINS)

and

CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES, LOCAL 2052

Re: Job Description/Evaluation

The Parties agree that, following ratification of this Agreement, a committee consisting of three (3) Employee representatives and (3) Board representatives will be formed. The purpose of this committee will be to review and resolve the matter of job description(s) for positions in the bargaining unit. The resolution of job descriptions by the committee will be completed by January 31, 1994 but should an agreement not be reached on all descriptions then the Parties will mutually decide on an arbitrator to make a final decision on any outstandingjob descriptions.

The committee following the resolution of job descriptions will review the various job evaluation plans available and will make a majority recommendation regarding the acceptance of a plan to the Board and the Union by March 31, 1994.

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING#4

between

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 82 COAST MOUNTAINS

and

CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES, LOCAL 2052

Re: French Monitor

The parties agree that at the discretion of the Board, a French Monitor, as provided and funded by the Government of Canada, may be hired for the school year, with the following provisions:

- The job posting provisions of the Collective Agreement are waived.
- 2. The successful applicant(s) will be hired as casual employee(s)
- 3. Wages, weekly hours of work and vacation pay shall be as specified in the Monitor Program.
- 4. The employee(s) shall acquire paid sick leave as per Article 21 of the Collective Agreement.
- 5. Article 19, Statutory Holidays, shall apply.
- 6. The benefits of Article 25 shall not apply.
- 7. The employee(s) shall not acquire seniority while funded by the Monitor Program.
- 8. This agreement may be ended by either party by giving written notice to the other party. However, this agreement shall only expire on the June 30 after notice has been received.

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING#5

between

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 82 COAST MOUNTAINS

and

CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES, LOCAL 2052

Re: Pay Equity and Job Evaluation

The parties agree that a gender neutral job evaluation plan will be introduced into the School District as per the following. It is further agreed that the Board will set aside an amount for pay equity which is equal to the amount funded by the province. The Board and the Union agree that the spending of the set aside funding shall be within the guidelines established for pay equity and as agreed between the Parties. The Board and the Union agree to make a joint application for pay equity funding.

Gender Neutral Job Evaluation Plan

The parties shall meet and jointly develop a Gender Neutral Job Evaluation Plan (PLAN). It is the intent of the parties that this PLAN may be based on the CUPE Gender Neutral Job Evaluation Plan with amendments. The PLAN shall be agreed upon prior to May 26, 1995. In the event that the parties are unable to agree on a PLAN either party may seek interest arbitration using the services of Judi Korbin as arbitrator. The parties shall share equally the cost of the Arbitrator.

2. Job Descriptions:

Job Description Development Committee (JDDC) shall be formed comprised of two (2) members from the Board and two (2) members from the Union. The JDDC shall complete the development of job descriptions from questionnaires previously circulated and job descriptions previously agreed upon, no later than April 30, 1995. The job descriptions shall be in the format: Job Title, Summary, Duties and Responsibility, Qualifications and Licenses/memberships.

The Board shall pay the total cost for the two (2) CUPE members of this committee to a maximum of eight (8) paid days total. The Job Description Committee shall prepare and present the newjob descriptions to the parties.

3. Job Description Appeals:

In the event that the Board, the Union or an individual employee disagrees with the job description they may appeal to the JDDC within ten (10) working days of receipt of a draft job description. The JDDC shall make its final report within a further ten (IO) working days.

Any changes made as a result of this appeal shall be sent to the parties for formal approval.

Any further dispute including the inability of the JDDC to agree on a job description, shall be referred to Judi Korbin who shall serve as an expedited arbitrator to finalize the job description. Such appeals must be completed no later than June 9, 1995. Cost of the arbitrator shall be borne equally by the parties.

4. Job Equity Ratings:

Starting May 26, 1995 or sooner if agreement is reached on the PLAN the Job Description Development Committee shall rate all of the jobs using the PLAN. Once all ratings are complete the ratings and rationale shall be sent to the parties and to individual employees. Ratings shall be completed by June 23, 1995.

5. Job Rating Appeals:

The parties may appeal the rating to the Job Description Committee. The appeal shall be in writing with reasons as to why the rating is in dispute and explaining the rationale for a more appropriate rating. Such appeal must be filed by September 15, 1995. The JDDC will consider the information provided and make a determination on the appeal by October 15, 1995.

In the event that the committee cannot agree on the appeal, the committee may refer the ratings to Judi Korbin for a binding decision on the rating using the expedited arbitration process. Costs of Judi Korbin shall be borne equally by the parties. This appeal process must be finished no later than November 15, 1995.

6. Maintenance System for Job Evaluation and Ratings

The parties shall use the PLAN as the maintenance system for future job description reviews, job evaluation requests, and to assign a classification and rate of pay for new positions created by the Board.

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING#6

between

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 82 COAST MOUNTAINS

and

CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES, LOCAL 2052

Re: Exclusions

Article 3.04 - (EXCLUSIONS) of the Collective Agreement is hereby amended to include the position of: **HELPER**

LETTER **OF** UNDERSTANDING#7

between

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 82 COAST MOUNTAINS

and

CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES, LOCAL 2052

Re: Helper

It is agreed that the following conditions prevail for the position of HELPER included in Article 3.04 of the Collective Agreement:

The School District agrees that if any of the duties performed by the HELPER become essential to the operation of the School District, those duties will be assigned to Union Personnel.

The School District agrees that essential duties will not be assigned to the HELPER in preference to assigning those duties to Union members.

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING #8

between

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 82 COAST MOUNTAINS

and

CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES, LOCAL 2052

Joint Pay Equity Committee covering Employees of the former School District #80, Kitimat

- 1. The parties agree to the principle and concept of pay equity.
- 2. The parties agree to commence implementation of the gender neutral pay equity program retroactive to April 1995.
- 3. The parties recognise that factors beyond the control of either party may require adjustment to the date mentioned above, such adjustment will be made by mutual agreement.
- 4. The parties agree that implementation of the gender neutral pay equity program shall not exceed the targeted grant provided by the government to School District #80 (Kitimat).
- 5. The parties agree to strike a Joint Pay Equity Committee comprised of three (3) members appointed by the Union and three (3) members appointed by management.
- 6. The parties agree to schedule 50% of the Joint Pay Equity Committee meetings outside of regular working hours at no cost to the Board and 50% of the meetings during regular working hours at the cost to the Board of three CUPE members.
- 7. The Joint Pay Equity Committee shall meet within thirty (30) days of ratification of the Collective Agreement.
- 8. Either party shall have the right to have an advisor in attendance at joint meetings, with voice, but no vote.
- 9. Should either party so request, the Committee shall be dissolved and the matter of the Joint Pay Equity Committee shall be returned to the parties for resolution, which may include referral to arbitration.
- 10. The Terms of Reference shall be as attached in Appendix "A".

APPENDIX 'A'

TERMS OF REFERENCE JOINT PAY EQUITY COMMITTEE

The Joint Pay Equity Committee shall:

- a) determine the process and procedure in order to undertake the gender-neutral pay equity program;
- b) develop a weighted point gender neutral Job Evaluation Guide and determine the factors to be used;
- c) evaluate the jobs/positions using the Job Evaluation Guide as developed;
- d) develop a maintenance procedure for the program including a maintenance procedure guide;
- e) modify part or all of the Job Evaluation Guide(s) as necessary, or review new guides, procedures or methods;
- f) obtain all Job Evaluation documentation, existing Job Descriptions, ratings and job evaluation results, and revise or write job descriptions as necessary.
- g) If, as a result of the job evaluation review, a job is rated at a pay grade lower than the existing pay grade, the incumbent's rate shall be red-circled. The current incumbents in that Job Group will receive 100% of the negotiated increase for the term of the current Collective Agreement and, 50% of subsequent negotiated increases until such time as their existing rate of pay matches or is less than the newly classified rate of pay. New employees or employees who post into affected positions shall be paid at the newly established rate of pay.

between

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 82 COAST MOUNTAINS

and

CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES, LOCAL 2052

Re: Unbumpable Positions

The above parties agree that the employer's grievance concerning the designation of Special Services Assistants who cannot be bumped, pursuant to Article 16.04 of the collective agreement, is resolved as follows:

1. The parties agree to the following criteria for designating Special Services Assistants who cannot be bumped, pursuant to Article 16.04.

Where a student is identified by management as meeting one of the following criteria, a regular Special Services Assistant assigned to that specific student will be designated for the school year as non-bumpable.

- The student meets the Ministry's Special Education Services Manual of Policies, Procedures and Guidelines, category 119 (attached as "Appendix B"), definition as having multiple disabilities.
- 2. The student requires a Special Services Assistant who will need child-specific training for an extensive time (25 hours consecutive training or more). It is understood that when the student is new to the district the 25 hours training may be spread over ten months. For example:

Extensive orientation and mobility training.

Extensive training in behavioral management, particularly as it relates to the health and safety of others.

Extensive training in augmentative communication.

- 3. The student requires a Special Services Assistant who will be required to provide medical procedures to the student which, if inappropriately administered, could result in life threatening health hazards to the student.
- 4. The student has a specific expressive communication disability, as identified by the speech language pathologist, and the student **has** established a rapport with the Special Services Assistant and if that relationship was disrupted it could have a substantial detrimental affect on the educational progress of the

and the second



student, as determined by the Integration Support Teacher in consultation with the School based team.

- 2. When the employer posts a vacancy for a Special Services Assistant which the employer designated for the school year as non-bumpable, any special training requirements will be stated on the posting.
- 3. The parties agree the Heather J. Laing will remain seized with respect to any issues concerning the interpretation or application of this agreement.

between

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 82 COAST MOUNTAINS

and

CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES, LOCAL 2052

Qualifications for Special Services Assistants, Rehabilitation Workers, Home School Co-ordinators

- 1. **All** current Special Services Assistants, Rehabilitation Workers, Home School Coordinators, including those on the recall list on the date of signing of this letter, are required to attain an acceptable | 0 month certificate.
- 2. Acceptable | 0 month certificates are:
 - A: from Northwest Community College

Early Childhood Education Certificate - whether or not the 500 hour postcertification practicum has been completed Social Service Worker Certificate Community Service Worker Certificate Integrated Human Services Program - Special Education Endorsement

5: from College of New Caledonia

Social Services Training Program Development Disability Certificate

C: from University College of Cariboo, Okanagan University, Douglas College, Camosun College

Special Education Teacher Assistant Certificate (or equivalent title)

- D: Other ten month certificates in the Human Services Field from Provincially accredited institutions to be accepted on an equivalency basis.
- 3. The district and union will jointly develop a list of employees to whom this agreement applies, such list to be completed by September 30, 1997. It is agreed that employees who have been designated as Special Services Assistant II, shall on the signing of this agreement, be considered to have an acceptable 10 month certificate or the equivalent.

- **4. All** current Special Services Assistants, Rehabilitation Workers, Home School Coordinators, including those on the recall list on the date of signing of this letter will receive a letter from the district advising them whether or not they meet the **10** month certification requirement.
- 5. The employees who have not completed an acceptable **10** month certificate will be required to successfully complete a minimum of five courses toward an acceptable **10** month certificate no later than December **31**, 2000.
- 6. The employees who have successfully completed a minimum of five courses by December 31, 2000 will be provided with an automatic extension of two years to attain the acceptable 10 month certificate.
- 7. Employees to whom this agreement applies will be deemed to have the 10 month certificate qualification for the purposes of posting into positions and rights upon layoff until December 31, 2000 and during the 2 year extension period, if applicable.
- 8. The district agrees to provide to each employee an amount equal to the registration fee for one course upon the employee's agreement to register in that course. Upon proof of successful completion of the course the district will advance registration fees for another course. If a course, for which an employee has been advanced registration fees has not been successfully completed within ten months of the advance or if the employee leaves the employ of the district, the employee shall be required to reimburse the district for the advanced amount. Prior to any advance, the employee shall be required to provide the district with written authorization to deduct the advance from any salary owing to the employee.
- 9. The board will reimburse the employee for the cost of required textbooks upon proof of purchase.
- 10. Upon request, the district will provide space within school district facilities for employees to form study groups for the purposes of 'completing courses for the ten month certificate.
- 11. The Director of Special Services will discuss practicum requirements for employees with the applicable college and will make sincere efforts to meet the employee's interests in the scheduling of practicums where the practicums occur within the school district.
- 12. Employees to whom this agreement applies, who have not completed a minimum of five courses on or before DECEMBER 31, 2000, or who have not attained the ten month certificate on or before DECEMBER 31, 2002 shall not be qualified for posting or bumping into a position for which a ten month certificate is required. Employees who are not qualified will be laid off from their current position unless the employee was in the position prior to DECEMBER 31, 1997.
- 13. Where it is necessary to fill a position for which a 10 month certificate is required with an unqualified external candidate, the employee shall be hired pursuant to article 10.03.

between

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 82 COAST MOUNTAINS

and

CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES, LOCAL 2052

Re: Seniority Dates

The employees of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat) CUPE Local 2052 (Kitimat) will carry their seniority date with them and be placed in the applicable position on the seniority list that presently covers the employees of former CUPE, Local 2831 (dove tailing of seniority). Should there be a tie in seniority dates, alphabetical order of the employee's surname shall be used as a tiebreaker. It is agreed that prior to finalizing and dove tailing the seniority list, the employees shall have an opportunity to verify their seniority date. Furthermore, should the union have specific employees in any of the former bargaining units which require their seniority date verified by employment records, the employer shall, to the best of their ability, verify the seniority dates. It is understood that only a reasonable number shall be verified by the employer. Any seniority disputes shall be resolved by the parties.

between

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 82 COAST MOUNTAINS

and

CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES, LOCAL 2052

Re: Red Circling of Wage Rates Former CUPE Local 2052 (Kitimat)

The parties acknowledge that there is a difference in wage rates between that of former School District No. 88 (Terrace) and School District No. 80 (Kitimat). In recognition that some of the classifications of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat) have a higher wage schedule rate and that bringing these employees immediately down to these rates would have a significant financial impact, the parties have agreed to red circle the applicable wage schedule rates under the following conditions

- rate higher than that of the same classification of employees from former School District No. 88 (Terrace) shall maintain their present rate of pay contained in their wage schedule. Subject to an employee maintaining their red circle status, until the wage rates of the parallel classifications of former School District No. 88 (Terrace) equal or surpass the red circled rate, the red circled employees shall be eligible to receive 50% of any future wage increase i.e. if there was a 2% wage increase, this increase shall be received in the form of a cents per hour premium which shall be applied to their red circled rates. In an attempt to accelerate the reduction of the wage gap, it is understood that the remainder of the wage increase shall be applied to the wage rate schedules of employees of former School District No. 88 (Terrace);
- ii. if an employee, who is red circled posts into another classification, the employee shall lose their red circling protection and premium and the applicable wage rate of former School District No. 88 (Terrace) shall apply;
- iii. if an employee, who is red circled posts into the same classification in the geographical area of former School District No. 88 (Terrace), the employee shall lose their red circling protection and premium and the applicable wage rate of former School District No. 88 (Terrace) shall apply;

- If an employee who is red circled posts into the same classification in the geographical area of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat), that employee shall continue to have the red circling protection and premium;
- v. If an employee who is red circled, due to a defined layoff decides to bump, the following shall apply;
 - If the bump is lateral (same classification), then the employee shall continue to have the red circling protection and premium apply, regardless of which geographical area that employee bumps into;
 - If the bump is into a different classification, regardless of geographical location, the employee shall receive the red circling protection and premium of that classification;
- vi. any new hires in School District No. 82 (Coast Mountains) shall be at the wage rates of former School District no. 88 (Terrace);
- vii. the wage rates utilized for the purpose of red circling shall be the wage rates in effect for employees of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat) on February 27, 1999. The attached list of employees, classifications and rates of pay shall be signed off by the parties and become Attachment "D" of this Collective Agreement. Should there be a wage increase in the form of a wage premium as described in (i) of this Letter of Understanding the parties shall then amend and sign off on Attachment "D" to reflect the changes to the red circled amounts.
- viii. for the purpose of this clause, the definition of classification shall be the classifications which are presently in former School District No. 88 (Terrace).

between

THE BOARD **OF** TRUSTEES OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 82 COAST MOUNTAINS

and

CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES, LOCAL 2052

Re: Head Custodian Former CUPE Local 2052 (Kitimat)

If an employee is a "Head Custodian", he/she shall receive the higher of the two (2) following amounts:

- i. Their red circled rate of pay described in Letter of Understanding #12 of this Collective Agreement, or
- ii. The rate of pay under the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE, Local 2861 of former School district No. 88 (Terrace) plus the "Head Custodian" premium described in Schedule "F" of this collective agreement.

between

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 82 COAST MOUNTAINS

and

CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES, LOCAL 2052

Re: Theatre Employees in Kitimat

It is agreed that the work that is currently being performed in the Mount Elizabeth Theatre by bargaining unit employees shall continue to be performed by bargaining unit employees. It is understood that this work shall remain as work outside the bargaining unit for the geographical area of former School District No. 88 (Terrace).

between

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.82 COAST MOUNTAINS

and

CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES, LOCAL 2052

Re: Direct Deposit Former CUPE - Local 2052 (Kitimat)

The Union shall provide the employer with a list of employees in former CUPE, Local 2052 of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat) who cannot receive their pay via automatic deposit. Once these employees have been identified, the employer and the union shall meet to discuss the reasons why the employees cannot receive **a** direct deposit.

between

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 82 COAST MOUNTAINS

and

CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES, LOCAL 2052

Re: Seniority Dates of former CUPE Local 2861

Employees of former School District No. 88 (Terrace), CUPE Local 2861, shall carry their seniority date with them and be placed in the applicable position on the seniority list that presently covers the employees of former CUPE, Local 2831 (dove tailing of seniority). Should there be a tie in seniority dates, alphabetical order of the employees surname shall be used as the tiebreaker. It is agreed that prior to finalizing and dove tailing the seniority lists, the employees shall have an opportunity to verify their seniority date. Furthermore, should the union have specific employees in any of the former bargaining units which require their seniority date verified by employment records, the employer shall to the best of their ability, verify the seniority dates. It is understood that only a reasonable number shall be verified by the employer. Any seniority disputes shall be resolved by the parties.

ATTACHMENT "A" AS REFERRED TO IS THE CONSOLIDATION AGREEMENT

This attachment has been incorporated into the Contract. See Articles 17 and 18.

ATTACHMENT "B" REFERRED TO ARTICLE 14.08

CUPE LOCAL 2052 Casuals August 1998 - February 1999 Payroll

Ambercrombie, Michelle

Anderson, Hayley

Braun, Maureen

Burton, Anne

Buysse, Carla

Buysse, Debbie

Card, Louisa

Chisholm, Jessie

Coleman, Linda

Danis, Debbie

De Silva, Ray

Demedeiros, Dulce

Desousa, Lisa

Dornbierer, Ursula

Faria, Lucia

Fitzpatrick, Lori

Foley, Fidelis

Giraldi, Chris

Green, Darrell

Guy, Ted

Harris, Susan

Harrison, Linda

Holmberg, Betty

Kolodinski, June

Krevenchuk, Maria

Kuppers, Patricia

Larose, Doug

Larose, Larry

Larose, Pam

Lebel, Donia

Lee, Seana

Letourneau, Darlene

Lindstrom, Heather

Luis, Robert

Machula, Hana

MacLeod, Donald

Manson, Jim

McKenzie, Dan

Martyres, Zemira

Mathur, Kirpa

Mendoza, Emy

Moore, Gary

Morrison, Robin

Paul, Carol

Peacock, Susan

Pedro, Carlos

Phelan Patricia

Plewis, Anna

Rosoman, Tyler

Roth, Diana

Rothney, Marion

Sluyter, Roy

Seggie, Anne

Skender, Cheryl

Smith, Marie

Stuart, Janet

Thomson, Linda

Tse, Wendy

Valgren, Ray

Walker, Roberta

Williams, Rosalie

Wink, Gabrielle

Zielinski, Mark

ATTACHMENT "C" AS REFERRED TO IN ARTICLES 10.05; 16.04; 19.02; 22.07

Name	ame Classification		Categor	Level
			у	
Abercrombie, Michelle	Noon Hour	15.35	2	0
	Supervisor			
Amaral, Antonio	Janitor Con	19.46		
Amaral, Eduarda	Janitor (II)	18.21		
Astle, Bruce	Maintenance I	22.65		
Barbosa, Maria	Noon Hour	16.14	2	2
Eugenia	Supervisor			
Bator, Terry	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	2
Beadin, Monique	Janitor (II)	18.21		
Beattie, Lucy	Library Clerk	17.20	4	
Beeson, Lynne	Library Clerk	17.20	4	
Billingsley, Irene	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	
Bliss, Wendy	TA/Clerical KCH	18.38	6	2
Brady, Monica	Teacher Assistant	16.76	4	
Buick, Dorothy	Janitor (II)	18.21		
Burden, Karin	Library Clerk	17.20	4	
Calder, Shirley	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	
Carvalho, Floriano M.	Janitor Con	19.46		
Da Costa, Cynthia	Noon Hour	16.14	2	
Pauline	Supervisor			
Danis, Debbie	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	
Davis, Joan C.	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	
Dillabough, Elnora	Foods Assistant	17.74	5	2
Dornbierer, Ursula	Teacher Assistant	16.76	4	
Drinkwater, Elaine	Library Clerk	17.20	4	
Durocher, Gerald	Janitor Con	19.46		
Durocher, Margaret	Janitor Con	19.46		
Field, Ellen	Noon Hour	16.14	2	
	Supervisor			
Flint, Sandra D.	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	
Fois, Lea A.	School Secretary	18.87	7	2
Furtado, Carlos	Janitor 1	18.89		
Gibson, Margaret	Teacher Assistant	18.87	7	Red Circled
Gorden, Charlotte	School Secretary	18.87	7	2
Green, Sheila J.	Native Ed Home/School	19.37		
Green, Wayne R.	Theatre Technician	18.87	7	2
Olecii, Wayile IX.	THEALE TECHNICIAN	10.07	r	

Gutierrez, Socorro	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	Ţ·
Harrison, Carole	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	
Hartmann, Rosa	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	<u> </u>
Hoffos, Marilyn	High School	20.26		
, rondo, mannyn	Secretary	20.20		
Hone, Patti	School Secretary	18.87	7	
Horwood, Brenda	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	
Hough, Margaret	Data Process Clerk	18.38	6	2
Janes, Madonna	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	
Johson, Suzan	Noon Hour	16.14	2	
	Supervisor			
Kamagianis, Froso	Janitor (II)	18.21	-	
Kowalczyk, Deborah	Noon Hour	15.76	2	1
	Supervisor			
Krevenchuk, Maria	Teacher Assistant	16.76	4	1
Kuppers, Patricia	Noon Hour	15.76	2	1
	Supervisor			
Lawson, Barbara	Library Clerk	17.20	4	
Lindner, Dorit	Library Clerk	17.20	4	2
Losier, Claude	Janitor 1	18.89		
Luis, Manuel A.	Foreman	24.40		
Maier, Wilma Lee	Bus Driver (II)	19.55		
Martins, Milagrinha	Noon Hour	16.14	2	
	Supervisor			
Martyres, Zemira	Noon Hour	16.14	2	
	Supervisor			
Mayer, Kathy	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	
McKenzie, George	Electrician	23.26		
Melo, Fernanda	Janitor (II)	18.21		
Mendes, Eduardo M.	Maintenance II	21.13		
Morin, Marie	Native Ed	18.95		
	Home/School			
Morton, Lucia	Noon Hour	16.14	2	
	Supervisor			
Muchalla, Tripta	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	
Notheis, Barbara	Noon Hour	16.14	2	
	Supervisor			<u> </u>
Pacheco, Roger	Carpenter	23.26		
Palumbo, Shirley	Janitor Con	19.46		
Parsons, Patricia	Accounts Clerk	18.38	6 .	
Pesunit, Maria	Janitor Con	19.46		

Phelan, Patricia M.	Teacher Assistant	16.76	4	1
Pierce, Jean Christine	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	
Reid, Monica	Noon Hour	16.14	2	
	Supervisor			
Rejczak, Emilia	Noon Hour	16.14	2	
	Supervisor			-
Rendell, Deborah	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	
Rinquinha, Anastasia	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	
Ross, Laurel, J.	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	
Salema, Antonio J.	Maintenance II	21.13		
Sangha, Kelly	Noon Hour	16.14	2	
	Supervisor			
Santucci, Karen	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	
Schmidtke, Regine	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	2
Shaw, Nina R.	Native Ed	18.52	8	1
	Home/School			
Siclari, Rosa M.	Janitor (II)	18.21		
Silva, Maria A.	Janitor (II)	18.21		
Smith, Merina	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	
Soursos, Alexandra	Janitor (II)	18.21		
Stumpf, Hilda	Janitor (II)	18.21		
Vilness, Trudy	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	
Viveiros, Maria	Janitor (II)	18.21		
Waddell, Elizabeth	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	
Wild, Kay	Noon Hour	16.14	2	
	Supervisor			
Wink, Gabrielle	Noon Hour	15.76	2	1
	Supervisor			
Zielinski, Rosemary	Library Clerk	17.20	4	

ATTACHMENT "D" AS REFERRED TO IN LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING #12

I			ΙΥ	
Parsons, Patricia	Accounts Clerk	18.38		
Maier. Wilma Lee	Bus Driver (II)	19.55		
Pacheco, Roger	Carpenter	23.26		
Hough, Margaret	Data Process Clerk	18.38	6	2
McKenzie, George	Electrician	23.26		
Dillabough, Elnora	Foods Assistant	17.74	5	2
Luis, Manuel A.	Foreman	24.40		1
Hoffos, Marilyn	High School	20.26	************	
	Secretary	,		1
Amaral, Eduarda	Janitor (II)	18.21		
Beadin, Monique	Janitor (II)	18.21		
Buick, Dorothy	Janitor (II)	18.21		
Kamagianis, Froso	Janitor (II)	18.21		
Melo, Fernanda	Janitor (II)	18.21		
Siclari, Rosa M.	Janitor (II)	18.21		
Silva, Maria A.	Janitor (II)	18.21		
Soursos, Alexandra	Janitor (II)	18.21		
Stumpf, Hilda	Janitor (II)	18.21		
Viveiros, Maria	Janitor (II)	18.21		
Furtado, Carlos	Janitor 1	18.89		
Losier, Claude	Janitor 1	18.89		
Amaral, Antonio	Janitor Con	19.46		
Carvalho, Floriano M.	Janitor Con	19.46		
Durocher, Gerald	Janitor Con	19.46		
Durocher, Margaret	Janitor Con	19.46		
Palumbo, Shirley	Janitor Con	19.46		
Pesunit, Maria	Janitor Con	19.46		
Beattie, Lucy	Library Clerk	17.20	4	
Beeson, Lynne	Library Clerk	17.20	4	
Burden, Karin	Library Clerk	17.20	4	
Drinkwater, Elaine	Library Clerk	17.20	4	
Lawson, Barbara	Library Clerk	17.20	4	
Lindner, Dorit	Library Clerk	17.20	4	2
Zielinski, Rosemary	Library Clerk	17.20	4	
Astle, Bruce	Maintenance I	22.65		
Mendes, Eduardo M.	Maintenance II	21.13		

Salema, Antonio J.	Maintenance	21.13		
Green, Sheila J.	Native Ed Home/School	19.37		
Morin, Marie	Native Ed Home/School	■8.95		
Shaw, Nina R.	Native Ed Home/School	18.52	8	I
Abercrombie, Michell	e Noon Hour Supervisor	15.35	2	• (
Barbosa, Maria Eugenia	Noon Hour Supervisor	16.14	2	A
Da Costa, Cynthia Pauline	Noon Hour Supervisor	16.14	2	
Field, Ellen	Noon Hour Supervisor	16.14	2	
Johson, Suzan	Noon Hour Supervisor	16.14	2	
Kowalczyk, Deborah	Noon Hour Supervisor	15.76	2	1
Kuppers, Patricia	Noon Hour Supervisor	15.76	2	1
Martins, Milagrinha	Noon Hour Supervisor	16.14	2	
Martyres, Zemira	Noon Hour Supervisor	16.14	2	
Morton, Lucia	Noon Hour Supervisor	16.14	2	
Notheis, Barbara	Noon Hour Supervisor	16.14	2	
Reid, Monica	Noon Hour Supervisor	16.14	2	
Rejczak, Emilia	Noon Hour Supervisor	16.14	2	
Sangha, Kelly	Noon Hour Supervisor	16.14	2	
Wild, Kay	Noon Hour Supervisor	16.14	2	
Wink, Gabrielle	Noon Hour Supervisor	15.76	2	1
Fois, Lea A.	School Secretary	18.87	7	2
Gorden, Charlotte	School Secretary	18.87	7	2

Hone, Patti	School Secretary	18.87	7	T
Bliss, Wendy	TA/Clerical KCH	18.38	6	2
Bator, Terry	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	1 - 2
Billingsley, Irene	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	
Brady, Monica	Teacher Assistant	16.76		
Calder, Shirley	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	
Danis, Debbie	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	
Davis, Joan C.	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	
Dornbierer, Ursula	Teacher Assistant	16.76	4	
Flint, Sandra D.	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	
				
				Red
Gibson, Margaret	Teacher Assistant	18.87	7	Circled
Gutierrez, Socorro	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	
Harrison, Carole	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	
Hartmann, Rosa	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	<u> </u>
Horwood, Brenda	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	
Janes, Madonna	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	
Krevenchuk, Maria	Teacher Assistant	16.76	4	1
Mayer, Kathy	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	
Muchalla, Tripta	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	
Phelan, Patricia M.	Teacher Assistant	16.76	4	1
Pierce, Jean Christine	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	
Rendell, Deborah	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	
Rinquinha, Anastasia	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	
Ross, Laurel, J.	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	
Santucci, Karen	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	
Schmidtke, Regine	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	2
Smith, Merina	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	
Vilness, Trudy	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	
Waddell, Elizabeth	Teacher Assistant	17.20	4	
Green, Wayne R.	Theatre Technician	18.87	7	2

ATTACHMENT "E" - REFERRED TO IN ARTICLE 25.09

CUPE LOCAL 2052 RRSP Contributors

Burdin, Karin

Dillabough, Elnora

Hoffos, Marilyn

Hone, Patti

Lawson, Barbara

Lindner, Dorit

ATTACHMENT "F" AS REFERRED TO IN ARTICLE 27.09

CUPE 2052 First Aid Allowance

Bator, Terry

Bliss, Wendy

Gorden, Charlotte

Hone, Patti

Lindner, Dorit

Luis, Manual A.

Maier, Wilma Lee

Morton, Lucia

Pacheco, Roger

Parson, Patricia

Waddell, Elizabeth

Wild, Kay

ATTACHMENT "G" IS REFERRED TO IN SCHEDULE "F"

CUPE LOCAL 2052Construction and Reconstruction

Amaral, Antonio	С		Saloma Antonio	*	**
Amaral, Eduarda	С		Salema, Antonio		, ,
Astle, Bruce, C.	*	**	Siclari, Rosa M.	С	
Beaudin, Monique	С		Silva, Maria A.	C	
Buick, Dorothy	C		Soursos, Hilda	С	
Carvalho, Floriano	С		Stumpf, Hilda	С	
Durocher, Gerald	С		Viveiros, Maria	С	
Durocher, Margaret	С				
Furtado, Carlos	С				
Kamagianis, Froso	С				
Losier, Claude	С				
Luis, Manual A.	*	**			
McKenize, George	*	**			
Melo, Fernanda	С				
Mendes, Eduardo M.	*	**			
Pacheco, Roger	*	**			
Palumbo, Shirley	С				
Patzelt, Isobel	С				
Pesunti, Maria	C				

Legend

- * Reconstruction
- ** Construction
- C Reconstruction/Custodial Refinishing

ATTACHMENT "H" AS REFERRED TO IN ARTICLE 16.07

CUPE LOCAL 2052 Layoff List As of February 28, 1999

Beeson, Lynne

Coleman, Linda

Demedeiros, Dulce

Faria, Lucia

Foley, Fidelis

Letourneau, Darlene

Mulwaka, Rosalind

03/22/39 03: 49: 41 SDS SYS

COAST MOUNTAINS S.D. #82 SENIORITY REPORT AT SEPTEMBER 21, 1333

PAYROLL HUNBER: 02 81 NEEKLY

JOB STATUS : AI

400 21N102 : NI									J08	EMP	€UP
HAKE	HUMBER	J08 CL	DESC	RIPTI	ÛN		STA	TUS	ANNI VERSAR		START
STUMPF, HILDA	1203	32	CUPE	2052	12	MONT	 Н	A		05/25/67	
LONG, LOIS	53475		CUPE								
THOASON, DONNA	88425		CUPE						04/15/70		
HOFFOS, NARLLYN	1102	32	CUPE	2052	12	MONT	H	A	04/20/70	04/20/70	
SALEMA, ANTONIO J.	1178	32	CUPE	2052	15	MONT	H	A	11/16/71	11/16/71	11/16/71
PESUNTI, MARIA	1201	32	CUPE	2052	12	MONT	K	A	03/17/72	03/17/72	03/17/72
KANAGIANIS, FROSO	1186	32	CUPE	2052	12	MONT	H	A	03/26/73	03/26/73	03/26/73
MENDES, EDUARDO M.	1174	32	CUPE	2052	12	MONTI	H	a	07/03/73	07/03/13	07/03/13
QUAST, JOAN	72850	20	CUPE	2052	12	MONTI	H (A	09/01/73	09/01/73	09/01/73
TIMMERNAN, V.N.	88630	22	CUPE	2052	10	MONTH	H (A	09/01/73	09/01/73	09/01/73
GURNSEY, ÖERYL	33800	21	CUPE	2052	12	MONTH	K (A	10/01/73	10/01/73	10/01/73
LUIS, NANUEL a.	1161	32	CUPE	2052	12	HONTH	1	A	10/29/73	10/29/73	10/29/73
618SON, JOYCE E.	32200	20	CUPE	2052	12	HONTH	1 (A	07/15/74	07/15/74	07/15/74
SORENSEN, LISSI	84210	22	CUPE	2052	10	MONTH	1 (A	09/03/74	09/03/74	09/03/74
SOUSA, ANTHONY	84285	21	CUPE	2052	12	HONTH	1 (A	09/04/74	09/04/74	09/04/74
NEDEIROS, JACINTO	60200		CUPE					A	09/01/75	09/01/75	09/01/75
SA EH, JEANNE	83325		CUPE					A	03/01/75		09/01/75
SPOONER, NILMA	84440		CUPE					A	09/01/75	09/01/75	09/01/75
BAXTER, MARGARET A	5950		CUPE					A	1 1/25/75	11/25/75	11/25/75
SICLARI, ROSA N.	1202		CUPE					A	06/07/76	06/07/76	06/07/76
EIDE, DOLDRES	25775		CUPE					A	08/25/77	08/25/77	08/25/77
ROTH, EDNARD	76800		CUPE :					A	01/21/70	01/21/70	01/24/78
ANARAL, ANTONIO	1179		CUPE					a	07/04/78	07/04/70	07/04/78
GIBSON, MARGARET	1093		CUPE 2					A	09/05/78	09/05/78	09/05/78
VEYSEY, ROBERT	91600		CUPE 1					A	09/11/78	09/11/78	09/14/78
NIEBENGA, ANGIE	33350		CUPE 2						09/20/78	09/20/78	09/20/78
DILLABOUGH, ELNORA	1124		CUPE 2					a	11/01/78	11/01/78	11/01/78
ROSS, MARION	85925		CUPE 2					a	03/05/79	03/05/79	
PATZELT, ISOBEL T.	1139		CUPE 2					A	03/12/79	03/12/79	03/12/79
ASTLE, BRUCE C.	1156		CUPE 2					A	04/10/73		
HOUGH, MARGARET	1103		CUPE 2				,	A	08/07/79	08/07/79	08/07/79
MARSHALL, PHILLIP	58775		UPE 2					A	08/22/79	08/22/79	
KANINSKY, LINDA	46800		UPE 2					a	09/01/79	09/01/79	09/01/79
SOULES, MARILYN	84280		UPE 2				•	a		09/01/79	
HONE, PATTI SKEAD, MARJORIE A.	1081 9256		UPE 2				,	A	10/22/79		10/22/79
LLOYD-JONES, JUDY	52428		UPE 2					A	11/06/79 03/17/80		09/06/78 03/17/80
CRAVEIRO, JOSE	20190		UPE 2					A	03/25/80		10/15/79
GORDEN, CHARLOTTE	1125		UPE 2					Â	08/25/80		08/25/80
NUCHONSKI, MAY	63225		UPE 2					A			03/01/80
BOOTH, DONNA	10525		UPE 2					A			09/11/80
CAMPBELL, PATRICK M.	14575		UPE 2					A			09/18/80
KENNEDY, JOAN	47500		UPE 2					A			09/23/80
FOIS, LEA A.	1078		UPE 21					A			11/03/80
TOLATE, LORA	89330		UPE 20					A	12/12/80		12/12/80
NULANKA, ROSALIND	1140		UPE 20					A			05/21/81
ANDERSON, CATHARINA	3565		UPE 20				(A			09/08/81
WILSON, MANCY	33430		UPE 20					A			11/13/81

ATTACHMENT " I" REFERRED TO LETTER OF UNDEMANDING #11, LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING #16

09/22/99 03:43:41 SUS SYS

COAST MOUNTAINS S.O. MOZ SENIORITY REPORT AT SEPTEMBER 21, 1999

PAYROLL NUMBER : 02 81 WEEKLY

JOB STATUS : AT

JUB STRIUS : RI				JOR	ENF	C at D
NANE	NUMBER	JOB CL DESCRIPTION	STATUS	ANNIVERSARY		
The sale or the						
oesjardiis, liseite	24900	21 CUPE 2052 12 M	ONTH (A	10/14/82	10/14/82	10/14/82
COTE, RACHEL	19000	22 CUPE 2052 10 NO	ONTH (A	10/22/82	10/22/82	09/07/82
STENART, NATALIE	85000	20 CUPE 2052 12 M	ONTH (A	06/16/83	06/16/83	06/16/83
LANSON, BARBARA	1134	30 CUPE 2052 10 M	A HTHO	08/22/83	08/22/83	08/22/83
ROSS, JODY W.	76725	21 CUPE 2052 12 MG	ONTH (A	10/01/83	10/01/83	10/01/83
LINONER, DORLT	1109	30 CUPE 2052 10 NO	A NINO	10/03/83	10/03/83	10/03/83
KOLLIAS, KOSTANTINA	2101	21 CUPE 2052 12 MG	ONTH (A	11/15/83	11/15/83	04/27/99
TCHERNOUSSOFF, TATIANA L.	62450	22 CUPE 2052 10 AC	A) HTHO	09/24/84	09/24/84	09/24/84
KENDALL, NORREY F.	47300	21 CUPE 2052 12 MO		10/15/84	10/15/84	10/15/84
DESJARDINS, DENISE	24875	21 CUPE 2052 12 NO		10/25/84	10/25/84	10/25/84
HALL, RITA	35985	22 CUPE 2052 10 AO		01/28/85	01/28/85	01/28/85
COLLINS, KARK	15750	21 CUPE 2052 12 NO		05/08/ 85	05/08/85	06/22/94
SOUSA, DOREEN	84290	21 CUPE 2052 12 MO		06/03/85	06/03/85	06/03/85
NCKENZIE, GEDRGE	1171	32 CUPE 2052 12 NO		12/16/85	12/16/85	12/16/85
GARDHER, RON. a.	31000	21 CUPE 2052 12 AO		05/27/86	05/27/86	05/27/86
HEID, NAONI	33875	21 CUPE 2052 12 AO		07/02/86	07/02/86	07/02/86
MORRISON, C. ANNE	60775	21 CUPE 2052 12 NO		08/05/86	08/05/86	08/05/86
THOOT, PETER	88320	21 CUPE 2052 12 NO		01/02/86	11/26/87	09/02/86
CAMPBELL, VELDA H.	14500	22 CUPE 2052 10 MOI		09/01/87	09/01/87	09/05/95
DON, PAN	19055	22 CUPE 2052 10 MOI		09/08/87	09/08/87	09/08/87
LOSIER, CLAUDE	1187	32 CUPE 2052 12 MOI		09/08/87	09/08/87	09/08/87
MAIER, WILMA LEE	1189	30 CUPE 2052 10 MOI		09/08/87	03/08/87	09/08/87
PACHECO, ROGER	1194	32 CUPE 2052 12 MOI		09/08/87	09/08/87	09/08/87
CLARK, BELINDA	18020	20 CUPE 2052 12 MOM			09/09/87	09/09/87
GREEN, NAYNE R	1094	30 CUPE 2052 10 NON			09/16/87	09/16/67
BLISS, NENOY	1089	30 CUPE 2052 10 MON		11/16/87	11/16/87	11/16/87
VILNESS, TRUOY	1120 10520	30 CUPE 2052 10 MON		12/08/87	12/08/87	12/08/87
BISSELL, SHELLY LACEY, JUDY	47575	22 CUPE 2052 10 MON 22 CUPE 2052 10 MON			01/04/88	01/04/88
MARCEAU, JUDY	62430	22 CUPE 2052 10 MON				01/25/88
CORNEAU, SUSAN	58425	20 CUPE 2052 12 NON				01/25/88
GILLANDERS, ANNE	23700	22 CUPE 2052 10 MON				03/16/88 03/18/88
STRACHAN, JACQUIE	85390	22 CUPE 2052 10 NON				01/21/88
RUNOELL, CARNEN	78550	22 CUPE 2052 10 NON				04/25/88
KELLY, JODY	46093	22 CUPE 2052 10 NON				09/06/88
BURDEN, KARIN	1122	30 CUPE 2052 10 NON				09/27/88
PIATTONI, JEANNA	66400	22 CUPE 2052 10 NON				10/11/88
GOOD, CAROL	33450	21 CUPE 2052 12 NON				11/21/88
BIRCH, GISELLE	10510	22 CUPE 2052 10 NON1				11/23/88
JANES, NADOHNA	I132	30 CUPE 2052 10 AON1	TH A	02/17/83 0	2/17/89	02/1 7/89
SCHNLOTKE, REGINE	1148	30 CUPE 2052 10 NON1	TH A	02/17/89 0	2/17/89	2/17/89
KLUSS, DARLA	93310	21 CUPE 2052 12 MONT	TH (A			2/20/89
BOUVETTE, PANELA	43205	22 CUPE 2052 10 MONT	TH (A	03/14/89 0	3/14/89 (03/14/89
MARTINS, MILAGRINHA	1207	30 CUPE 2052 10 MONT	TH A	04/03/89 0		4/03/89
SANTUCCI, KAREN	1118	30 CUPE 2052 10 MONT	TH A	04/03/89 0		4/03/89
GRAHAM, JOSET	33485	22 CUPE 2052 10 MONT	TH C A	04/13/83 0	4/19/89	4/13/89
REID, MONICA	I223	30 CUPE 2052 10 MONT			5/15/89 ()5/15/89
CALDER, SHIRLEY	1090	30 CUPE 2052 10 MONT	TH A	05/29/83 0	5/23/89 ¢	5/29/89

CUPE Local 2052 –and- School District No, 82 (Coastal Mountains) Collective Agreement July 1, 1994 –June 30, 1997

09/22/99 09: 49: 41 \$D\$ \$Y\$ CORST MOUNTAINS S.D. #82
SENIORITY REPORT AT SEPTEMBER 21, 1999

PAYROLL NUMBER = 02 BI MEEKLY

JOB STATUS : ai

468 214102 T 41	4114666	100 CI	۸۲۸	^^!		,		TA FHC	JO AAALUCAAA		
MANE		308 Cf			101		-		Anniversar		Y START
JURGELEIT, CHRISTA	44660	21	CUPI	E 205	2 1	2 #0	MTH	(A	06/02/89	06/02/89	
OAVIS, JOAN C.	1141		CUPI								
MARCHILOOM, JEANNE	57630		CUP								
DA SILVA, NATALINA	21780		CUPE								
MIL-HOMENS, ISABEL	58560		CUPE								
CARVALHO, FLORIANO M.	1184		CUPE					a			
CREEK, CATHERINE	80885	22	CUPE	205	2 10	0 NO	NTH	(a			09/05/89
GAVRONSKY, CATHY	30095	22	CUPE	205	2 11	0 NO	HTH	(a	09/05/89		09/05/89
BOOTH, NICHELE	94905	22	CUPE	2.05	ic ic	o 110 i	HTH	(a	09/26/89	09/26/89	
HEBER, JEANNE	92540	22	CUPE	205	ic	o NO i	HTH	(A	10/17/89	10/17/89	10/17/89
FOLEY, FIDELIS	1080	30	CUPE	205	2 14	D NO	HTH	A	10/19/89	10/19/89	10/19/89
VIPOND, JINAINA S.	91195		CUPE						11/01/89	11/01/89	11/01/89
CRAIG, ROSENARY	20155	22	CUPE	205	2 10	10h (NTH	(A	11/27/89	11/27/89	11/27/89
REDEKOP, DARLENE	74255		CUPE					(a	11/27/89	11/27/89	11/27/89
NELO, FERNANDA	1193		CUPE					а	12/01/89	12/01/89	12/01/89
LOGAN, SHIRLEY	53550		CUPE						12/11/89	12/11/89	12/11/89
DESIERTO, GLORIA	22690		CUPE						01/08/90	01/08/90	01/08/90
Jack, Theresa a.	44380		CUPE						01/08/90	01/08/30	01/08/90
NARSHALL, NARIE R.	58755		CUPE					(A	02/01/90	02/01/90	09/07/83
DUROCHER, GERALD	1185		CUPE					a	02/15/90	02/15/90	02/15/90
BUSTIM, ARTHUR	13755		CUPE						02/21/90	02/21/90	02/21/30
QUALIZZA, MARIA	73050		CUPE					(a	04/13/90	04/13/90	04/19/90
VIVEIROS, MARIA	1827		CUPE					À	08/14/90	08/14/90	08/14/90
BARNES, ALICE	5955		CUPE						08/27/90	08/27/90	08/27/90
REJCZAK, EMILIA	1116		CUPE					A	09/05/90	09/05/90	09/05/90
SILVA, MARIA A.	1821		CUPE					A	09/18/90	09/18/90	09/11/90
NOOKEY, JOHN	93760		CUPE						03/18/90	09/18/90	09/18/90
DA COSTA, CYNTHIA PAULINE HIPPISLEY, DANN	1111 36940		SUPE					A	09/19/90	09/19/90	09/19/90
SHITH, MERINA	1151		CUPE						09/19/90	09/19/90	09/19/90
DUROCHER, MARGARET	1771		3900					R а	09/20/90 10/15/90	09/20/90 09/04/90	09/20/90 49/01/90
DVORAK, MATHALIE	9035		UPE						10/23/30	10/29/90	01/01/90
HAUGLAND, MARTHA	36745		UPE						12/10/90	12/10/90	12/10/90
BEEDLE, HORA	94898		UPE						12/17/90	12/17/90	12/17/90
BILLINGSLEY, IRENE	1763		UPE					a	01/25/91	01/25/91	10/01/90
HAYDEN, MARLENE	36753		UPE						02/11/91	02/07/86	02/07/86
CAMPBELL, CAROL	14572		UPE 2						05/27/91		05/27/31
PALUNBO, SHIRLEY	I806		UPE 2					A	07/02/91		02/21/89
AKARAL, EDUARDA	1753		UPE 2					A	09/03/91		10/28/91
BUICK, DOROTHY	1761	32 CI	UPE 2	052	12 1	TRON	H	a	09/03/91		01/08/90
MAYER, KATHY	1800	30 C	UPE 2	052	to I	THON	H	a	03/03/91		09/03/91
SOURSOS, ALEXANDRA	1818	32 CI	UPE 2	052	12 1	HONT	H	A	03/03/91	09/03/31	05/01/89
FANDREY, SHERYL	27338	21 CU	UPE 2	052	2 1	IONTI	H (a	09/23/91	09/23/91	01/07/91
FURTADO, CARLOS	1781	32 CI						а	03/23/91	09/23/31	09/23/91
SINKS, NONICA	82298	22 CI						R	10/01/91		10/01/91
ALLEN, BECKIE	9288	22 CU						а			03/04/31
BEAUDIH, MONIQUE	1764	32 CU						A			10/28/31
RUBINATO, PATRICIA	3301	55 CA	JPE 2	052 1	0 #	1140	1 (а	10/23/31	10/23/91	09/16/91

03/22/99 09:49:41 \$0\$ \$Y\$ COAST MOUNTAINS S.D. #82 SENIORITY REPORT AT SEPTEMBER 21, 1999

PAYROLL HUMBER = 02 BI MEEKLY
JOB STATUS = A1

JOB SIRIUS : AI				J08	ENI	P ENP
HANE	NUNBER	JOB CL DESCRIPTION		ANNIVERSARY	SENIORITY	START
LINOSTRON, LYNN	9360	22 CUPE 2052 10		11/18/91		
BEE, LINDA	8215			12/02/91		
CEH, JOAN	9755			12/02/91		
TUPPER, LINDA	9291	22 CUPE 2052 10		12/10/91		
CHICOINE, RAELINE	17985			12/16/91	1 2/16/91	12/16/91
HUNT, WENDY	9433	22 CUPE 2052 10		01/08/92	01/08/92	
LAVOIE, LEEAN	51215	21 CUPE 2052 12	MONTH (A	01/27/92	01/27/92	08/04/88
LANDRY, EVANGELINE	50509	22 CUPE, 2052 10	AUNTH (A	02/06/92	02/06/92	02/06/92
SAMPARE, MYRTLE	9349	21 CUPE 2052 12	MONTH (A	02/07/92	11/06/91	11/06/91
NICHOLLS, SHARON	9446	22 CUPE 2052 10	NONTH (A	02/12/92	02/12/92	02/12/92
CORRIGAL, NELODY	18946	22 CUPE 2052 10	AONTH (A	02/14/92	02/14/94	02/14/92
ORINKWATER, ELAINE	1222	30 CUPE 2052 10	A HINON	02/20/92	02/20/92	09/05/89
BARBOSA, MARIA EUGENIA	1765	30 CUPE 2052 10	MONTH A	02/24/92	12/15/91	12/15/91
SMITH, JOAN	9436	22 EUPE 2052 10	NONTH (A	03/21/92	03/24/92	01/15/92
PROUDFOOT, IVY	9238	21 CUPE 2052 12	NONTH (I	05/05/92	05/05/92	05/05/92
BROOKS, MARSHA	9468	22 CUPE 2052 10	R) HTHON	05/01/92	05/07/92	03/23/93
HAMER, PAULA	85219	22 CUPE 2052 10	NONTH (1	07/02/92	07/02/92	10/02/91
NUTNA, ANDREN	3529	21 CUPE 2052 12	ACHTH (A	07/13/92	07/13/92	07/13/92
YOUNG, ANGELA	9390	22 CUPE 2052 10		08/27/92	08/27/92	11/27/91
BOLGER, LONA	3001	22 CUPE 2052 10		03/08/92	09/08/92	01/04/91
casu, susan	13979	22 CUPE 2052 10		09/08/32	09/08/92	09/08/92
CHESTERMAN, VERONA	13985	22 CUPE 2052 10		03/23/92	09/23/92	09/23/92
ZIELINSKI, ROSEMARY	1831	30 CUPE 2052 10		10/02/92	11/06/87	11/06/87
BURBEE, CAROLINE	13459	22 CUPE 2052 10		10/16/92	18/16/92	10/16/92
ACGILLIVRAY, DENISE	3606	22 CUPE 2052 10 I		10/19/92	10/26/98	10/19/92
RUTHERFORD, YVETTE	9241	22 CUPE 2052 10 I		10/19/92	10/19/92	10/19/92
DIKA, SUZANNE	9447	22 CUPE 2052 10 I		10/26/92	10/26/92	10/26/92
UNDERHILL, PEGGY	9623	22 CUPE 2052 10 1			10/23/92	10/29/92
HUNENTUK, JENNIFER	9574	21 CUPE 2052 12 1			11/02/92	09/01/92
POULIN, FERN	9618	20 CUPE 2052 12 M		11/02/92		11/02/92
BEATTLE, LUCY M. BROOKS, EDWARD	1762 9465	30 CUPE 2052 10 M 21 CUPE 2052 12 M			11/17/92	01/29/90
BUFFY, GAIL	9323	22 CUPE 2052 10 M			12/23/92 01/04/93	02/26/92 01/01/93
PARKS, GERTRUDE	66530	22 CUPE 2052 10 M				01/01/93
DEMEDEIROS, DULCE	1773	32 CUPE 2052 12 N			01/25/93 44/22/92	04/22/92
APPENZELLER, EVA	9709	21 CUPE 2052 12 M			03/01/93	03/01/93
DOWNEY, LINDA	1772	30 CUPE 2052 12 M			03/01/93	10/23/91
CONNAY, JOAH	9042	22 CUPE 2052 10 M				03/08/93
HASSAM, HEATHER	3723	22 CUPE 2052 10 M				04/20/93
SUTTERREZ, SOCORRO	1157	30 CUPE 2052 10 M				04/26/93
MORGAN, MOELLA	61060	22 CUPE 2052 10 M				06/02/93
PHILPS, SALLY	9720	22 CUPE 2052 10 M				04/01/93
REHOELL, DEBORAH	1748	30 CUPE 2052 10 M				09/07/93
NADDELL, EL WABETH	1828	30 CUPE 2052 10 M				05/23/89
CLARK, CHARLENE	3713	22 CUPE 2052 10 M	DATH (A	11/03/33	11/03/13	02/18/93
HOTHEIS, BARBARA	1801	30 CUPE 2052 10 MG	e HTNO	11/03/93 (01/06/92	01/06/92
OLSON, HILOA	3827	22 CUPE 2052 10 AC	ONTH (A	11/15/93	11/15/33	11/15/33
YOUNG, SANDRA	3818	22 CUPE 2052 10 AC	intri (a	12/09/93	12/09/33	10/22/93

SDS SYS

COAST MOUNTAINS S.D. #82 SENIORITY REPORT AT SEPTEMBER 21, 1333

BI NEEKLY PAYROLL NUMBER : 02

JOB STATUS : RI

HAME	NUMBER .	JOB CL DESCRIPTION	STATU!	JOB ANNIVERSARY		
DANIS, DEBBIE	1218	30 CUPE 2052 10	A HINON			
ROSS, LAUREL J.	1812	30 CUPE 2052 10			1 01/01/9	4 01/08/30 4 11/08/93
FEE, FANNY	9675	22 CUPE 2052 10			· 01/01/9	
BEESOM, LYNNE	1760	30 CUPE 2052 10			03/04/94	
HENDERSON, DEBBIE	9815	22 CUPE 2052 10			09/06/94	
RINQUINHA, ANASTASIA	181 I	30 CUPE 2052 10			09/06/94	
STEPHENS, ELAINE	9104	21 CUPE 2052 12			09/06/94	
CAMPBELL, SHEILA	9810	22 CUPE 2052 10				10/04/93
AINSCON, JEFFREY D.	3509	21 CUPE 2052 12		10/03/94		
HOOKEY, VICKY	9901	22 CUPE 2052 10		10/05/94		
ANDERSON, RITA	9981	22 CUPE 2052 10		10/11/94		10/11/94
MOORE, VIRGINIA	9991	22 CUPE 2052 10		10/14/94	-	
HUNENTUK, TON	9634	21 CUPE 2052 12		11/07/94		11/10/92
CLOUTIER, PAULINE	9726	21 CUPE 2052 12				04/06/93
MUCHALLA, TRIPTA	1797	30 CUPE 2052 10				10/04/91
Y00, Y00N	1034	22 CUPE 2052 10				02/06/95
PIERCE, JEAN CHRISTINE	1807	30 CUPE 2052 10				03/10/92
MALO, AMNE	1038	22 CUPE 2052 10				07/31/95
VILLENEUVE, HENRIETTE	1106	22 CUPE 2052 10				08/31/95
HARRISON, CAROLE	1105	30 CUPE 2052 10				02/17/89
MCKENZIE, MAY	1127	22 CUPE 2052 10				09/11/95
SEYMOUR, GERALD	1164	22 CUPE 2052 10				10/06/95
DASIRI, LOUISE	9892	21 CUPE 2052 12				03/31/94
PERRY, CLAUDIA	1172	22 CUPE 2052 10		10/18/95		
TOHAZ, LORRALHE	1035	22 CUPE 2052 10		11/23/95		
YEHL, STEVEN	34545	21 CUPE 2052 12		12/14/95		
PALAHICKY, JIN O.	9841	21 CUPE 2052 12				12/01/93
MARTYRES, ZENIRA	1217	30 CUPE 2052 10		01/16/96	01/16/96	04/03/89
NONG ADANS, DIANA	1221	22 CUPE 2052 10		03/01/96	03/01/96	01/22/96
NUIS, CHERISE	9938	20 CUPE 2052 12 1	A) HINON		03/04/96	11/08/94
PERCOCK, KORY	85415	22 CUPE 2052 10 I	MONTH (A		07/25/96	
HAMILL, JOHN	1311	22 CUPE 2052 10 /	A) HINOP		09/03/96	09/03/96
HORN, LORRAINE	1284	22 CUPE 2052 10 I	ONTH (A	09/03/96	09/03/96	05/17/96
RNIATKONSKI, CORALEE	1312	22 CUPE 2052 10 I	ONTH (A	03/03/96	09/03/96	09/03/96
LEBLOND, TRACIE	1313	22 CUPE 2052 10 A	ONTH (A	03/03/96	09/03/96	09/03/96
POUNO, KAREN	9857	22 CUPE 2052 10 #	IONTH (A	09/03/96	09/03/96	01/07/94
FIELD, ELLEN T.	1779	30 CUPE 2052 10 H		09/13/96	04/26/90	04/26/90
TONNESEN, STEVEN	9534	21 CUPE 2052 12 M		09/27/96	06/30/32	06/30/92
OWE#, MICHELLE	3927	22 CUPE 2052 10 M		10/01/96	10/01/96	06/16/94
WILHELM, BRANDY	1368	22 CUPE 2052 10 H		10/01/96	10/01/96	10/01/36
HORNOOD, BRENDA	I790	30 CUPE 2052 10 M			10/17/96	18/17/96
COOLEY, KATHLEEN	1236	22 CUPE 2052 10 M			10/23/96	02/20/36
CLARMONT, SHARON	3896	21 CUPE 2052 12 M				04/07/91
MACDONALD, MIJAK	9868	22 CUPE 2052 10 M				01/20/94
SAMOKA, KELLY	1816	30 CUPE 2052 10 M				11/16/93
KILBY, JUHE	3646	22 CUPE 2052 10 A			01/13/97	
COLEMAN, LIMOA	1766	30 CUPE 2052 10 M				06/28/83
AMGELL, MICHELE	1433	22 CUPE 2052 10 M	OULH (I	01/21/97 ()1/21/37	01/06/97

09/22/99 09:49:42 SDS SYS

COAST MOUNTAINS S.O. #82 SEMIORITY REPORT AT SEPTEMBER 21, 1399

PAYROLL NUMBER : 02 BI MEEKLY

JOB STATUS : ai

NAME	NUABER (108 CL	DESC	RIPTI	'n	•	STA	TUS	JOB ANNIVERSARY	EMP SENIORITY	
DAVIES, NYRNA	3306	22	CUPE	2052	10	MONTH	·	A	03/01/99	03/01/99	09/03/97
DEGERNESS, BETH	1974	22	CUPE	2052	10	MONTH	1 (A	03/01/99	03/01/99	10/09/98
OUTTON, FLORA	23600	22	CUPE	2052	10	MONTH	1 (A	03/01/99	03/01/99	09/01/87
EAKIN, DIANA	1537	22	CUPE	2052	10	MONTH	1 (A	03/01/99	03/01/99	09/08/97
SILL, MANJIT	1842	22	CUPE	2052	10	MONTH	(A	03/01/99	03/01/99	03/06/90
GINKA, DANNA	3324	22	CUPE	2052	10	MONTH	(A	03/01/99	03/01/99	09/09/98
SORIAK, GAYLON	1440	22	CUPE	2052	10	MONTH	(A	03/01/99	03/01/99	01/20/97
GREEN, PATSY	34299					MONTH		A	03/01/99	03/01/99	09/04/91
GRENAL: PARNIHOER	9504					HINON		A	03/01/99	03/01/99	09/03/96
HESKA, CINOY	1957	22	CUPE	2052	10	MONTH	(-1	03/01/93	03/01/99	09/23/98
MACDOUGALL, CAROL	1621					KONTH		A	03/01/99	03/01/99	02/24/98
ANKOVY, YYNOHRK	9635					KONTH		A	03/01/39	03/01/33	11/03/92
NELIN, LEDA	1558	22	CUPE	2052	10	HOMEH	(A	03/01/99	03/01/93	10/01/97
MERRIAM, VICKIE	1059					MONTH		A	03/01 / 93	03/01/33	03/21/95
XILLER, KATHY	9075					MONTH		A	03/01/39	03/01/99	03/03/36
NOFFAT, THERESA	1470					MONTH		A	03/01/93	03/01/99	03/25/17
MOJAK, DEBBIE	57645					HTHON		A	03/01/39	03/01/99	09/09/98
NICHOLS, BARB	9338					HTHON		A	03/01/99	03/01/99	09/03/97
ORANGO, CHERYL	1266					HTROM		A	03/01/99	03/01/33	04/23/96
PAYNE, JOAN	9371					HONTH		A	03/01/99	03/01/99	09/29/94
PIZZEY, GEORGENIA	9641					MONTH		A	03/01/99	03/01/99	11/17/32
RAPOSO, HELEN A.	1571					HINON		A	03/01/39	03/01/39	10/16/97
SABO, JOYCE	1472					HINON		A	03/01/99	03/01/99	01/01/97
SAMPARE, MAY ROSIE	3987					HONTH		A	03/01/99	03/01/99	10/17/94
SEXSAITH, GNEN	1016					HONTH		A	03/01/99	03/01/99	12/09/94
SMITH, SHERRILL	1599					HIRON		A	03/01/99	03/01/99	12/12/97
THISTLE, ANITA	1345					HINON		A	03/01/99	03/01/99	09/04/96
THORBURN, JACK	1897					HIBON		A	03/01/99	03/01/99	06/05/98
WALL, BETTY ANN	1162					HIRON		A	93/01/99	03/01/99	10/03/95
NHITE, NANNITA	1238					HTNO		A	03/01/39	03/01/99	02/28/96
WHITTINGTON, INGRID	93579					CONTH		A	03/01/93	03/01/39	09/01/97
WOODCOCK, KAREN	1496 3557					ONTH		A A	03/01/93 03/09/93	03/01/33	05/26/97 09/21/92
MARSHALL, JODI	1836					IONTH		H A	03/09/93	03/03/99	03/05/98
PETERSON, KEVIN	2140					IONTH			03/29/39	09/08/99	09/08/99
ANDREWS, LYMETTE	417	62 6	, , , , ,	VJE I	V 1	1011111	١.	п	V3/ V0/ /3	03/00/33	03/00/33

TOTAL FOR BI WEEKLY

09/72/99 09:49:41 \$0\$ \$Y\$

COAST HOUNTAINS S.O. #82 SENIORITY REPORT AT SEPTEMBER 21, 1993

PAYROLL HUMBER = 02 81 MEEKLY

JOB STATUS : A!

HAME HU	MBER	JOB CL	DES	CRIPI	104	f	S	TATUS	JOE ANNI VERSARI		
CAULANCO ULUNU	 acas		CH 01	 C 205		- 12 #1	- -	(A	02/10/92		7 05/28/92
•	9503 1198			E 205							7 11/27/95
•	1275			E 205							7 05/01/89
The state of the s	1505			E 205							
-	9184			E 205							
•	1462			205					09/17/97		
•											
•	1043			205 205				a	09/18/97		7 09/18/97
•	1177			: 203 E 205					09/22/97		
•	1497 9336			205					09/25/97 09/25/97		
•	1829			205				(-A	09/25/97		11/01/81 10/11/94
•	1789			205				A			10/06/97
•	196			205							11/15/95
•	049			205				. a	10/09/97		
•	824			205				a	10/14/97		03/03/95
•	570			2052					10/14/37		
	706			2052					10/23/97		
,	584			2052					11/06/97		
	143			2052					11/12/97		
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	782			2052				. A	01/05/98	01/05/98	02/03/97
•	068			2052				a	01/05/98	01/05/98	
•	398			2052					01/07/98	01/21/98	
	206			2052					01/21/90	01/21/98	12/15/95
	048			2052				À	03/06/98	03/06/98	09/24/97
•	844			2052				A	03/23/98		03/23/98
•	808			2052				a	04/09/98	04/09/98	02/06/97
<u> ₹</u> ′	195			2052					07/13/98		11/06/95
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	933			2052				I	09/08/98		09/08/98
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	010			2052						10/01/38	
•	356			2052					10/28/98		
	330			2052				Ï	10/30/38		
	348			2052				ā	11/09/98		
	151			2052				a		11/10/98	
	109			2052					12/09/98		09/17/93
	38			2052					12/11/98	12/11/98	09/10/98
•	01			2052				A	01/04/99	01/04/99	11/16/98
	06			2052				A	01/11/99	01/11/99	01/12/98
•	32			2052						01/12/99	05/14/93
ORVIOSON, JOYCE 94				2052						01/30/93	01/07/92
BECK, EILEEN 13				2052					03/01/99		10/07/96
BECK, JOYCE 67				2052				A		03/01/99	09/09/98
BLABEY, MARGARET 39	17	22 C	UPE 2	2052	to	MONI	TH (a	03/01/99	03/01/99	05/25/94
BLIGHTON, DONNA L. 130	61	35 C	UPE 2	2052	10 1	HON	IH (a		03/01/99	03/26/96
BOSER, SUSANNE 15				2052				4			11/03/97
CASTLE, CHRISTIHE 15:	38			2052				а	63/01/93	03/01/31	09/08/97
COBURN, LEONIE 126	09	22 C	UPE 2	2052	io i	AOHI	H I	a		03/01/93	12/19/95
CROMPTON, CHARLOTTE 922	26			052				а	03/01/99	03/01/93	05/14/91
DAUGHERTY, SHIRLEY 135	32	55 C	UPE 2	052	10 1	aoa t	H (A	03/01/99	03/01/99	10/21/96

COAST MOUNTAINS SCHOOL DISTRICT

School District 82

3211 Kenney Street Terrace, B.C. V8G 3E9

Phone 250 635-493 I 1 800 665-6134 Fax 250 635-4287

February 23, 1999

Norrey Kendall C. U.P.E. Local 2861

Re: Tri-CUPE Memorandum of Agreement

Enclosed for your record, is a signed original of the MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT-CONSOLIDATION OF THE BARGAINING UNITS between the three CUPE locals and the Board.

We would like to thank **you** for the good-will shown during the creation of this Agreement.

Yours truly

B. D. Piersdorff, CMA
Secretary Treasurer

bp/pf enc.

C:

Acting Superintendent of Schools

MEMORANDUMOF AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

The Board of School Trustees

School District No. 82 (Coast Mountains)

AND

Canadian Union of Public Employees

Local **2831**

AND

Canadian Union of Public Employees

Local 2861

And

Canadian Union of Public Employees

Local 2052

SUBJECT

CONSOLIDATION OF THE BARGAINING UNITS

On December 2, 1996 School District No. 88 (Terrace) amalgamated with School District No. 80 (Kitimat) to form School District No. 82 (Coast Mountains). On a without prejudice basis, the parties agree to make joint application to the British Columbia Labour Relations Board for the consolidation of the bargaining units which are currently covered under the certificates of Bargaining Authority covering employees of former School District No. 88 (Terrace) who are members of CUPE, Locals 2831 and 2861, and employees of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat) who are members of CUPE, Local 2052 under the following terms and conditions:

- 1. The consolidation of the bargaining units shall take effect on the date that the Labour Relations Board issues the consolidation. The implementation of this Memorandum of Agreement shall take effect on February 28, 1999.
- The employees employed by the former School District No. 88 (Terrace) who are currently members of CUPE, Local 2831, the employees employed by the former School District No. 88 (Terrace) who are currently members of CUPE, Local 2861 and the employees of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat) who are currently members of CUPE, Local 2052 will consolidate the bargaining units and form one bargaining unit.

- 3. The terms and conditions of employment currently in place for former CUPE, Local 2831 employees of former School District No. 88 (Terrace) will remain in full force and effect. The terms and conditions of employment currently in place for employees of the former, CUPE, Local 2861, of former School District No. 88 (Terrace) and the current terms and conditions of employment currently in place for employees of former, CUPE Local 2052 of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat) will cease to exist and these employees shall now be covered under all the terms and conditions of employment that are in existence for former CUPE, Local 2831 employees of former School District No. 88 (Terrace).
- 4. Effective February 28, 1999, the following Clauses from the collective agreement currently covering employees from former CUPE, Local 2831 of former School District No. 88 (Terrace) shall be amended and shall apply to all Support Staff bargaining unit employees of School District No. 82 (Coast Mountains):
 - Delete Clause 3.05 and replace it with,

The Union shall provide the Board with the names of its officers, stewards, committee members and representatives with whom the Board may be required to meet. The Board shall likewise provide the Union with the names \mathbf{d} its officers and committee members and representatives with whom the union may be required to meet.

b. Delete Clause 9.03 and replace it with,

Up to six (6) representatives of the Union on the Bargaining Committee, who are in the employ of the Board, shall have the right to attend meetings held within working hours without loss of remuneration. The Union shall reimburse the Board for wages and benefits for the fourth, fifth and sixth representative.

- c. Clause 15.01 shall be amended to delete the words, "each school, the Board office, the district office and Resource Centre" and replace with the words, "each work site".
- d. Delete Clauses 17 and 18 entirely and replace it with the document dated February 2, 1999 (Attachment "A") with the following amendments to this attachment:
 - i. Clause 17.03 (**Technical** Director)

This Clause shall only apply to the geographical area of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat).

ii. Clause 17.07 (Paid Rest Periods)

Clause 17.07 of the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE, Local 2831 of former School District No. 88 (Terrace) shall apply to employees who are employed in the geographical area of former School District No. 88 (Terrace). Clause 13.1 of the collective agreement

covering employees of former CUPE, Local 2052 of former School district No. 80 (Kitimat) shall apply to employees who are employed in the geographical area of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat).

- e. The number of bargaining representatives stipulated in Clause **22.03** shall be increased from the present amount of "3" to the new amount of "6".
- f. The number of employees elected or appointed to represent the Union at conventions stipulated in Clause 22.04 shall be increased from the present amount of "4" to the new amount of "8".
- g. The number of union representatives appointed to the School District Safety Committee stipulated in Clause 27.04(a) shall be increased from the present amount of "2" to the new amount of "3".
- h. The Noon Hour Supetvisors in former School District No. 80 (Kltlmat) are members of the CUPE, Local 2052 bargaining unit. The Noon Hour Supervisors in former School District No. 88 (Terrace) are currently non union. As a result of the consolidation of the bargaining units, it is agreed by the parties that the Noon Hour Supervisors in former School District No. 88 (Terrace) shall become members of the bargaining unit. Accordingly, Schedule "A" of the collective agreement shall be amended to include the classification of "Noon Hour Supervisor". The pay rate for this position shall be \$11.56 per hour.

Furthermore, the parties shall meet to determine the seniority dates for the Noon Hour Supervisors.

- 5. Effective February 28, 1999, the following Clauses from the collective agreement currently covering employees from CUPE, Local 2831 of former School District No. 88 (Terrace) shall be deleted and shall no longer apply or have any effect on any Support Staff bargaining unit employee in School District No. 82 (Coast Mountains):
 - a Clause **14.02** (Probation for Newly Hired Employees)
 - b. Clause 22.01 (Union Business)
 - c. Clause 17.05 (Shift Differential)
 - **d.** Clause **13.01** (Right to have union Representative Present)
- 6. Effective February 28, 1999, the following Clauses, Letters of Understanding and Schedules from the collective agreement currently covering employees from former CUPE, Local 2861 of former School District No. 88 (Terrace) shall be added to the collective agreement currently covering employees from former CUPE, Local 2831 of former School District No. 88 (Terrace). Effective February 28, 1999, these Clauses, Letters of Understanding and Schedules shall apply to

all Support Staff bargaining unit employees in School District No. 82 (Coast Mountains):

- a. Clause 3.06 (Work of the Bargaining Unit)
- b. Clause 14.02 (Probation for Newly Hired Employees)
- c. Clause 22.01 (Union Business Leave)
- d. Clause 23.04 (Head Custodian Premium while on Sick Leave)
- e. Clause 27.01 (Protective Clothing and Safety Footwear)
- f. Unnumbered Clause on page 45 of the agreement which states, "Paces Daycare facility to be provided services by bargaining unit'.
- g. Schedule "A" (Classifications and Rates of Pay)
- h. Schedule "B" (Head Custodian, Shift Differential, Dirty Money) The parties shall meet to discuss the possibility of changing the "Head Custodian" premium from a monthly rate to a cents per hour premium. It is understood that any change would result in the same amount of premium being paid out on an annual basis.
- Letter of Understanding No. 2 (Helper)
- i. Letter of Understanding No. 3 (Helper)
- 7. Effective February 28, 1999, the following Clauses from the collective agreement currently covering employees from CUPE, Local 2052 of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat) shall be added to the collective agreement currently covering employees from former CUPE, Local 2831 of former School District No. 88 (Terrace). Effective February 28, 1999, these Clauses shall apply to all Support Staff bargaining unit members in School District No. 82. (Coast Mountains):
 - a. Clause 9.4 (Noon Hour Supervisors)
 - b. Clause 8.3 (Right to have Union Representation)
 - c. Clause 11.1 (Definitions)
 - d. Clause 20.10 (injections and Inoculations)
 - e. Clause 22.3 (Examination of Students)

- 8. Notwithstandingthe aforementioned, those employees of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat), CUPE, Local 2052 will:
 - a. Carry their seniority date with them and be placed in the applicable position on the seniority list that presently covers the employees of former CUPE, Local 2831 (dove tailing of seniority). Should there be a tie in seniority dates, alphabetical order of the employee's surname shall be used as a tiebreaker. It is agreed that prior to finalizing and dove tailing the seniority list, the employees shall have an opportunity to verify their seniority date. Furthermore, should the union have specific employees in any of the former bargaining units which require their seniority date verified by employment records, the employer shall, to the best of their ability, verify the seniority dates. It is understood that only a reasonable number shall be verified by the employer. Any seniority disputes shall be resolved by the parties.

Casual and temporary employees who are on the casual or temporary list on February 28, 1999 and have not accumulated ninety (90) shifts of service credits in accordance with Clause 14.07 of the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE, local 2831 of former School District No. 88 (Terrace), shall have Clause 9.7 of the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE, Local 2052 of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat) continue to apply to them (with the exception of the reference in this clause to 11.3 which shall be 15.05) until they acquire ninety (90) shifts of service credits. The parties shall confirm this list of casual and temporary employees in a signed off document which will become Attachment "B" of this Memorandum of Agreement.

- b. Notwithstanding Clause 1 of this Memorandum of Agreement, the vacation leave entitlement contained in Clause 15.1 of the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE, Local 2052 of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat) shall continue to be in effect until January 1, 2000. Effective January 2, 2000, these employees shall fall under the vacation leave entitlement provision of the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE, Local 2831 of former School District No. 88 (Terrace). If on January 1, 2000, an employee was entitled to a higher increment level of vacation leave entitlement under Clause 15.1 of the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE, Local 2052 of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat), then those employees shall maintain that higher Increment level of vacation; however, they shall only move to a higher Increment level of entitlement as dictated by the collective agreement which covers employees of former CUPE, Local 2831 of former School District No. 88 (Terrace).
- c. Employees shall carry over any sick leave credits which they currently have in their accumulated sick leave bank. Ifan employee has more than the 120 day limit-of sick leave-credits, the employee shall not accrueany further sick leave credits unless they fall below 120 days of sick leave credits. Once they fall below 120 days of sick leave credits.

Notwithstanding the amount of sick leave credits an employee has at the time of their termination of employment, the maximum sick leave payout under Clause 21.08 of the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE, Local 2831 of former School District No. 88 (Terrace) shall be the following:

- 25% of unused sick leave after 10 years of service to a maximum of 30 days.
- ii. 40% of unused sick leave after 15 years of service to a maximum of 48 days.
- ili. 60% of unused sick leave after 20 years of service to a maximum of 72 days.
- d. Clauses 9.2(f), 12.4(c), 14.1(c) and 17.2 of the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE, Local 2052 of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat) shall continue to apply to the employees of former CUPE, local 2052 of former School District No. 80 (kitimat) who are employed on February 28, 1999. The parties shall confirm this **list** of employees in a signed off document which will become Attachment "C" of this Memorandum of Agreement.
- e. The parties acknowledge that there is a difference in wage rates between that of former School District No. 88 (Terrace) and School District No. 80 (Kitimat). In recognition that some of the classifications of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat) have a higher wage schedule rate and that bringing these employees immediately down to these rates would have a significant financial impact, the parties have agreed to red circle the applicable wage schedule rates under the following conditions:
 - rate higher than that of the same classification of employees from former School District No. 88 (Terrace) shall maintain their present rate of pay contained in their wage schedule. Subject to an employee maintaining their red circle status, until the wage rates of the parallel classifications of former School District No. 88 (Terrace) equal or surpass the red circled rate, the red circled employees shall be eligible to receive 50% of any future wage increase, i.e., if there was a 2% wage increase, these employees would be eligible to receive 1%. This increase shall be received in the form of a cents per hour premium which shall be applied to their red circled rates. In an attempt to accelerate the reduction of the wage gap, it is understood that the remainder of the wage increase shall be applied to the wage rate schedules of employees of former School District No. 88 (Terrace);
 - ii. if an employee, who is red circled posts into another classification, the employee shall lose their red circling protection and premium and the applicable wage rate of former School District No. 88 (Terrace) shall apply;

- if an employee, who is red circled posts into the same classification in the geographical area of former School District no. 88 (Terrace), the employee shall lose their red circling protection and premium and the applicable wage rate of former School District No. 88 (Terrace) shall apply;
- iv. If an employee who is red circled posts into the same classification in the geographical area of former School District No. **80** (Kltlmat), that employee shall continue to have the red circling protection and premium;
- v. If an employee who is red circled, due to a defined layoff decides to bump, the following shall apply;
 - If the bump is lateral (same classification), then the employee shall continue to have the red circling protection and premium apply, regardless of which geographical area that employee bumps into;
 - If the bump is into a different classification, regardless of geographical location, the employee shall receive the red circling protection and premium of that classification:
- vi. any new hires in School District No. **82** (Coast Mountains) shall be at the wage rates of former School District no. **88** (Terrace);
- vii. the wage rates utilized for the purpose of red circling shall be the wage rates in effect for employees of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat) on February 27, 1999. The attached list of employees, classifications and rates of pay shall be signed off by the patties and become Attachment "D" of this Memorandum of Agreement. Should there be a wage increase in the form of a wage premium negotiated as described in Clause 8(e)(i) of this Memorandum of Agreement, the patties shall then amend and sign off on Attachment "D" to reflect the changes to the red circled amounts.
- for the purpose of this clause, the definition of classification shall be the classifications which are presently in former **School** District No. 88 (**Terrace**).
- f. If an employee is a "Head Custodian", he/she shall receive the higher of the two (2) following amounts:
 - Their red circled rate of pay described in Clause 8.e. of this Memorandum of Settlement, or
 - ii. The rate of pay under the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE, Local 2861 of former School district No. 88 (Terrace) plus the 'Head Custodian" premium described in Schedule "B" of the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE, Local 2861 of former School District No. 88 (Terrace).

- g. Clause 16.13 of the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE, Local 2052 shall continue to apply to all employees in former CUPE, Local 2052 of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat) who are currently having RRSP deduction made under this clause. The parties shall confirm this list of employees in a signed off document which will become Attachment "E" of this Memorandum of Agreement. Should an employee decide not to have any RRSP deductions made on his/her behalf in any one school year, their name shall be removed from the list.
- h. Employees employed in the geographical area of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat) shall continue to be covered under the Long Term Disability Plan described in Clause 16.9 of the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE, Local 2052 of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat).
- i. Employees employed in the geographical area of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat) shall continue to be covered by Clause 20.1(a) of the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE, Local 2052 of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat).
- j. It is agreed that the work that is currently being performed in the Kitimat Theatre by bargaining unit employees shall continue to be performed by bargaining unit employees. It is understood that this work shall remain as work outside the bargaining unit for the geographical area of former School District No. 88 (Terrace).
- k. Clauses **18.4** and **18.5** of the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE, Local **2052** of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat) shall continue to apply to all employees who are currently receiving the first aid or industrial first aid allowance under these clauses. The patties shall confirm this list of employees in a signed off document which will become Attachment "F" of this Memorandum of Agreement.
- Clauses 18.2(a) and 18.2(b) of the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE, Local 2052 of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat) shall continue to apply to all employees who are currently receiving the reconstruction and construction premium under these clauses. The parties shall confirm this list of employees in a signed off document which will become Attachment "G" of this Memorandum of Agreement.
- m. I. Clauses 10.5(d), 12.9 and 12.10 of the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE, Local 2052 of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat) shall continue to apply until January 1, 2003 to employees of former CUPE, Local 2052 of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat) who are employed or are presently on layoff status on February 28, 1999. Effective January 2, 2003 these Clauses shall no longer apply. The parties shall confirm this list of employees in a signed off document which will become Attachment "H" of this Memorandum of Agreement.

- ii. It is understood that an employee cannot receive both the severance pay under this clause as well as the superior sick leave pay out of Clause 21.08 of the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE, Local 2831 of former School District No. 88 (Terrace). Should an employee receive severance pay under this clause, Clause 16.5(e) of the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE, Local 2052 of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat) shall instead apply to this employee.
- n. The practice for paying vacation pay to 10 month employees shall continue until the next round of collective bargaining has been completed for the employees working in the geographical area of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat).
- The Union shall provide the employer with a list of employees in former CUPE, Local 2052 of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat) who cannot receive their pay via automatic deposit. Once these employees have been identified, the employer and the union shall meet to discuss the reasons why the employees cannot receive a direct deposit.
- 9. Notwithstanding the aforementioned, those employees of former School District No. 88 (Terrace), CUPE, Local 2861 shall:
 - a. Carry their seniority date with them and be placed in the applicable position on the seniority list that presently covers the employees of former CUPE, Local 2831 (dove tailing of seniority). Should there be a tie in seniority dates, alphabetical order of the employees surname shall be used as the tiebreaker. It is agreed that prior to finalizing and dove tailing the seniority lists, the employees shall have and opportunity to verify their seniority date. Furthermore, should the union have specific employees in any of the former bargaining units which require their seniority date verified by employment records, the employer shall to the best of their ability, verify the seniority dates. It is understood that only a reasonable number shall be verified by the employer. Any seniority disputes shall be resolved by the parties.
 - b. NotwithstandingClause 1 of this Memorandum of Agreement, the vacation leave entitlement contained in clause 20.01 of the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE, Local 2861 of former School District No. 88 (Terrace) shall continue to be in effect until January 1, 2000. Effective January 2, 2000, these employees shall fall under the vacation leave entitlement provision of the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE, Local 2831 of former School District No. 88 (Terrace). If on January 1, 2000, an employee was entitled to a higher increment level of vacation entitlement under Clause 20.01 of the collective agreement covering employees of former CUPE, Local 2861 of former School District No. 88 (Terrace), then those employees shall maintain that higher increment level of vacation; however, they shall only move-to a higher increment level of entitlement as dictated by the collective agreement which covers employees of former CUPE, Local 2831 of former School District No. 88 (Terrace).

- c. Employees shall carry over any sick leave credits which they currently have in their accumulated sick leave bank.
- 10. The employer shall review the district policy on the normal booking procedures and costs pertaining to the union using School Board facilities and equipment for union meetings and activities.
- 11. Presently there are separate pay equity plans near completion for former CUPE, Local 2052 of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat) and former CUPE, Local 2831/2861 of former School District No. 88 (Terrace). The parties recognize that in the future, following the consolidation of the bargaining units, there shall be one (1) pay equity plan which cove6 the entire district. As a result, the following shall apply:
 - a. The pay equity plan for former CUPE, Local 2052 of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat) and the pay equity plan for former CUPE, Local 2831/2861 of former School District No. 88 (Terrace) shall be completed. It is understood that in order to qualify for government pay equity funding, these two (2) plans must be completed and approved by March 31, 1999.
 - b. The approved retroactive pay equity pay adjustments for the approved year 1 and year 2 provincial government pay equity funding shall be paid out directly to the employees in lump sum amounts under the two (2) pay equity plans described in Clause 11(a) of this Memorandum of Agreement. The retroactive pay equity pay adjustment shall consist of the applicable approved year 1 and year 2 provincial government pay equity funding covering the period of April 1, 1995 to February 28, 1999 for employees of former School District No. 88 (Terrace) and September 25, 1995 to February 28, 1999 for the employees of former School District No. 80 (Kitimat). It is understood that this retroactive payout in no way shall effect the base rates of the pay schedules.
 - c. The parties shall then negotiate one (1) pay equity plan which will cover the entire new consolidated bargaining unit which will be effective February 28, 1999.

by Thorass

d. It is understood that the above is subject to PSEC's approval of the pay equity plans, subject to provincial government funding these pay equity plans and subject to PSEC's approval of Clause 11 of this Memorandum of Agreement.

Signed on behalf of:

The Board of School Trustees School District No. 82 (Coast Mountains) The Canadian Union of Public Employees Local 2831

The Canadian Union of Public Employees Local 2861

The Canadian Union of Public Employees Local 2052

The British Columbia Public School Employers' Association

Date

A:\SD20SETT.WPD

Merly Soules

* Holdall

#felore & ide

Be Dwooder

Boberta Walter.

pame & Org

Feb. 19-99